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HHZ 475 BEEFLAFAREMAREEREMBRERR -_STAFNEEZERFRTLANE &
BEASEER MEBERERETRIABHEZBE NEEEFBRNAERGMTEY BERAGMITE
BAF EMAXEEHR RN —BEBMIAERLTZHEERAETIHEVBRE B -REGFHRMB
EETEEEEA+TAFER AUt REEENERAREEHEE T 2N -RATBEHMLEZHEES -
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EFERS

ARBER(EFNENREEFTRE  URFA R RFAEEEE_S-—NEF=-ZA=+—HLEFEZKERY
BWEK -

FERH
ARRZEERXBAREBER FHEARAENBARNZEIEXBFRENMBHRERWE - AEEXTEXEK
ERFENLEEMERES -

FERERE
AEEBE-S-AE=AS+—BLEENEBERRAFREI0EEE0ENFARERRGEALER
e

ARRARIZF-/\F+ZA+EARNFTHEEEREER 4B - EFRZRBEFERPREFREEREE
il - WRARIRBUONR-F-AF/N\BZ+ENRRBFRAE LEREIE FHSR-F-AFAB+ZHIK
HFREZZB-NAF/NBZ+/\BRIKREZMORE - REFREREBRER]MEN -

HBERNEE
UTHEINAEERFRAEVREEZXEREEAEGENE BRECHELEZMBRER -
E
BE=ZBA=1+—HIL=EE
ZE—hEF —F—-)\EF —E—tfF ZE-NE s
FBT FET FET FET FET
PN 2,700,780 2,109,422 1,757,316 1,534,592 1,517,109
BR# A& 7 182,675 273,666 185,155 152,186 130,311
FiEMEX (44,527) (43,654) (30,036) (27,057) (25,128)
F W= F 138,148 230,012 155,119 125,129 105,183
&S -
Vi N/NSTEZ X =N 140,418 230,012 155,119 125,129 105,183
R EEER (2,270) — — — —

138,148 230,012 155,119 125,129 105,183
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EETHRE(E)
MEBERBE @
" fi= |
BEHGHE
R=B=+—H
—E—hEF —EF:—)\F —E—tF ZE—REF —EF—FF
TFET FEIT FET FET FETT
EREBEE 1,206,960 871,380 763,544 778,679 812,854
MBEE 1,226,784 899,443 765,170 779,840 756,567
mREAE (1,055,221) (470,249) (395,347) (439,152) (462,019)
MENE ERE 171,563 429,194 369,823 340,688 294,548
ERBER (53,756) (29,267) (23,018) (20,017) (19,871)
1,324,767 1,271,307 1,110,349 1,099,350 1,087,531

EXBELFEERT BRIV D -

R 2
ARRERFENRAZEHH N M BRKME27 -

BEBEHE
AADZEBERANRHERE AL FERETEEBEEZEY REAADARKANRERERERE

b e

BE BOXLEFAR EHESF
ARARREAMBAIRENERBE BERLERADEA LHES -

o] {9 Tk

RIF—NAF=ZBE=1+—H A2 0 RHASHERARER X E Z 0] #2K#%& %885,336,000/4 JT ° 885,336,000
BRLZABEEEARIRIZE-—AFZA=1+—HHNEHHZERKEAHE S 609,402,000 7T - AT DR Z
BHRALNDREBEREEZS KEEEHRENEEEHEEBPIHEEZERE -
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FEERRHER

CEEN AAEEAREFREHZHEBNNAEBRAFEEEHELEG0%  EFONRABEFIELZHEREL
#91567.4% -

FEBRAFEALREEAFLHZRBEOGEAEBRRRER287% EREAKAKEEEFL ZRBEINNG
6.0% -

EEE RECAZREHBASNBESMRNESARAERITRASL U EZEMBRR  HEEAEERLRE
FatEREEEMNExER -

=
RAGER EEA :

BITES:

BEERE (ERBRAITHAEE)

BN TE (BIZ /)

BEXRERE (R=F—NFAZF—HEZEF)
RS RX L

AR SR T & (R=ZF—NFALF—HEZHF)
FHE2EE

BIAFERTES:
REREE
ERMESRE

BEELL

REARBDZHEABEERMUETINGR BEELL FHE2EEMFRZELIHHFER REGEREEER
BEKRREBFAEERET REARAZEBEEMAE6RF REZ-NFLAZEEFEAMBEEFNEK
RAENHRFLECTHENSETHRFEFEAEEN REGEREBEEREERTEFANEBEEE(F -
RAAREHERERELE EMEAERBRELIZFEBISHMEIRE RARSAH MEBREABIA
+ o

EErREREEERE
R A R TR 2 R WA A 4 4R 64 6T ¢
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ESZERBGHN
BEREALAMERDBEATEEEE2EFRAAARLEARBARTIARIFTR—ENBAR
8 CEE R N) TR L 2 RES 240 -

ERBUFJTESTEFEECH TARBARAZABEEAIRKRREFAG LHFEEEL FUER-

B <= B 3R B 25 5 i

FAEENMEBRRDBRBEENEENRREHNE TEEHETRN RILEBNEANEIME  AEETHGE
HESRHEHNBEA FARFHAREFLERNER AEERTESFHFIHSTENMHERRIZEEERK
PITESNFMEEMEZEIQAFABEFRAENREEHN  FFAEETRBRHABAITES -

FEEFHSENEIERMNEEEAFE NBERAREERT -

EXRSARKRRATLEGRRME BEEFCEREETESHS HUNSNHEFESRESFORE -
BERREURAEEREMET °

ESNRS  REXGHZER
RAFER BEEFAFFNHERRRALARKEAMBL AT LA EELBTEBERZEM
X5 RERBHT  HHEREERET SRS

EAETREER

ARBHEBERMARE ERMARRAENEETSZEREEREMSABENEEEARANEE i
FESHERS ZAFATREBETESEZBBIERANAMBEMEARFRERIZMEARETEH BLX BE
AR ATEEARMLEREMER ARAARDBEFEFNELRHNASEEERAEMSEBERBRENESER
SRBEEERRE -
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EFEHE(H)

ESTRESNERORERARDZERRES

RIB-NAEZA=+—H EERTBRAEIREARAZBEALBHAKRO (EEREBEAABNEZF AL
5O ([EBFRIER) BEXVER) & - EBERBEFLBEFRFIBEXVEEIRSNIHENEARAATNETRZE (B
BEEAZEFESFUTRRIRBEESFRPERIIZFHXREFAREAEETNERRZR) uﬂﬁﬁ’\@i‘am
FRPEHRIIBIFAFTENE nEﬂHE’JffEmi& SR CBRBLENRTAERTETESRINEESR ([FE
A EMNEARNARBMIANERDR=EMT

P /N
[ VN
FriFR&{p 8B ERTERAE
EENA g9 RE =8 Batt
EE AL TEREEER 72,650,000 — 13.66
(Kd5E1)
EREEA 17,104,000 — 3.21
[CN-Aes EmEEA 31,880,800 — 5.99
HKERE TRAEER 32,320,000 — 6.08
(Pt E2)

1. & R B Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited ([ Time Easy |) 5 - E& M ER TR AREBEEAXERTE -

2. L E D HEXcel SKilFH  HeMERTRABHEXKRKEELERSE -

BREXFREEN RIB-NAF=ZAZ+—H EFRTHRAIMEETHERARAZEO RERKRONER
TR MARBESFKBEMOIEINFTHE  ARBEETNAEABNARE KB -

ESRERDABEFZEF
BEXEERTRERNBOREAMBG 2 BRRER ) —HRBEEN RENEARYE CAEERRSE S

ZEBIARBFFL MEERITETEBALQRDRONESMER ZEFN  KARABRNEEMMEL BT E
FIUEATH BEESTRETMEMEABEESZSET -
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EFEHE(H)

FERRAEMAIRERORERARDZERRES
RIB—AF=A=+—0 RALAEERTRERSN  FTHALRALDZBRHRABBS S - 55 E RIS

BERPAERAIEXVEE2RIDHREMALNBFEURRAAEERBSF RAERFIEICHREFEZER
Mz ERZARE=EWT
AR AE
ST ERHE BERTERAE
%8 55 RE =B BaH
Time Easy BEDEEA 72,650,000 — 13.66
(BEaE1)
Excel Skill BEEEEA 32,320,000 — 6.08
(Bt sE2)
B SEAEER 192,000,000 — 36.09
(PFEE3)
Wealthplus Holdings Limited ZEEEED 192,000,000 — 36.09
(I Wealthplus ) (BMF2E3)
BT RiEEEER 192,000,000 — 36.09
(B 2E3)
Pou Hing Industrial Co. Ltd. SZEAEER 192,000,000 — 36.09
(I Pou Hing 1) (Fft5£3)
Great Pacific Investments Limited EDEEA 192,000,000 — 36.09
([ Great Pacific ]) (ft5E3)

1. Time Easy2 M ERTRAREE A KERE °
2. Excel Skil&PEFTHRABHBKEEERTSE -
3. £%192,000,000B%FH Great Pacific 8 ' Pou Hing#¥H Great Pacific 23 ## % - AT A Pou Hing2 B2 1THEA - Wealthplus &K Win

Fortune Investment Ltd. ([ Win Fortune ]) & B 5 #7046.89% &3.09% # % + & AL B # 5 Wealthplus & Win Fortune 2B ©
It » Pou Hing * #8JT * Wealthplus * Win Fortune & & 5% 33 #% 17 % % & H Great PacificF#%5192,000,0008% K # 2 ©

BREXKEEN RIFB-NFZRA=+—H BREXEZRTEESIRKRODEEERDZETRTE |-
HARAEERTHRAERZERN BMECAALRERBDZEOUBREKN T STHEEEAARBESFRE
ERPISE3BRTHZERHNTE

RALNTIFRE
BEAASDTAEEHZENRBEEFOE  RARSAN ALAERTRY BBARVB%EARALE
5o
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EFEHE(H)

ESNBRFRBCER

EEROBEFNRFXEFTEEARB LTRUEI0FKBEZERNOT :

EElkA NEBE REEBNEE EatE ZEHH
THEEGE(ERE]) #®ot (KsE1) AR & 2l 48 4 38 “F—MENA
EAEELLE (R Faith Year (Fff5£2) B AR B S —5—F%/)\A
B o ZE—RE/N\A
B+ Pro Kingtex HK (Bff5¥2)  AUIXExE BEE —5—FH/)\A
B o ZE—RE/N\A
B4+ Year Fortune (Hfz£2) B AR B S B= ZE—-NRE+H
B X ZE—RE+A
B XEHAEERENT B AR B BE ZE—RE+A
([RE&E (KF5E3)
Wi

1. RIRBMRXA LT RAREARBDIERR AL EENIEXBANCKHEERER SERNMHEDRER - BB TSR
MERAR HBE-_F-/\F+ A=+ -—HLFEERRNEXBNBLERANOBEERT ARAEBIELCEEIRK
BRHERBSED BWUATEBEAEBNXBAIEEERS -

HRATEERRAESEHAAEBINEERRKREE EERRARAABIERATEEATHETES KEEFTXKLES
HERTEBRRAEENTHFEELEE EFHE FHEBTRUTRHAEEEBBERNENRSE

2. RIFB—tEHE+A—BEZZ—/\EEBE=+—HHME At EE K HFaith YearkYear Fortunef95% X % © Faith Yeard
HPro Kingtex HK2 B I&# - —F — /\&FE /XA —HH] * Year Fortune - Faith Year R EMBAB ([EEAAE ) AR TEBETHA
B -BRAAEANELE(EAUEEDIRAABEENIRE - REFHAAARENEN FHEAIB#E_T—tE+H=+—
HIEFEHEEERARETAEEXET BRI TAEYHNERZNMATRAAANESS BV TEENRESEERR
R -BFHQNAEEZS—/\ERB—HERARLNANEERBAR - HEASHAERFCIZEQEEAKRBERHEEE]—
5 o

RZFB-/\FHA-BEZE-/\FAR=+T—HHB BIXIAIREHAQARAZIEE EFEE2EFAARAZHREE -
FZHELEERR EAPE WRBAFEEREE -
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EFEHRE(R)
EENBRERBEZERz®@
CESRC)
3. RERZS-AEAAZOEMEMBEMAY - @ TEELR 2Bk ARES BIHH0%R60% M - RRNEBEH

RESEPR KERFHNRE - REXRERHUOER RERSE_F-/\F+_B=+—HLEFEHBEEWRNCLTHESE
T FRLECDEREMAXREERE  HEBTEENREEERRAR

ERFHEETGS2EREZLEE ANEEHEARA B IERREQNFHETES -

REXKBERAEBELEN EFUARSFIEZETHBA(ERRLTRADMEREMENNTRELELE
EXEBEEIBERFIZEBTEEER

FAEALRS
AEBEBEE_F-NF=ZR=1T—HLEFENBREALRSGFBEERYBRRMAM -KTXIHERER S
—HiFARN  EthBEEALRZELEHRE LT RUBVUATHRZBILIRRM A FEERALAERERT -

HERERS

THREEKER AEEBEBHEL2ENE NP0 Kingtex VietnamEPouyuen Vietnam Company Limited
([ Pouyuen Vietnam | - —RRBERIZZAE AEAABBEEATHTZEELERBLAR) ETTIIRS R
CEENREELTHIFUAEERFERERS :

(a) ERBHE
MRZFE—/)\FE75B—H ' Pouyuen VietnamEaPro Kingtex Vietnami] X EREHE (ERBHHE]) - Bt
Pouyuen Vietnam@EE B ZF—/\E/XA —H&EAPro Kingtex VietnamBHETFTITERE T B IR - AH
=% Pro Kingtexf& B Pouyuen VietnamX R RFEE LRAT ¢

BE-A=+—-HILEMEBEE

ETXT(FEFEEER) 1,500,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 300,000
BB TEE 11,700,000 14,040,000 14,040,000 2,340,000

BHE-_FE—NE=B=1+—HLEE  Pro Kingtex VietnamiR & F IR % 1% :% @ Pouyuen Vietnam X f H B &
SR R40,601ET(HWEER74EEBTT) -
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EFEHE(H)
ﬁn‘ﬁgﬁ %% &)
(b) A

RZZT—/\E;xB—H - Pouyuen Vietnamf{E A& % X BiPro Kingtex Vietnam{E AT E ] AL ([FHY]) - A&
Ho_E—-N\ERE—HEZFZI—FAA=+—HEFEFEMR) =5 BETZREH71,184=T (B

EEE BEXREFEIEER) - EIL - Pro Kingtex VietnamR A HA N FE 1 Pouyuen VietnamfyFH & £ R 4N
T

BE-A=+—HLMEFE

ET(FEFEEER) 711,840 854,208 854,208 142,368
WML ETEE 5,552,000 6,663,000 6,663,000 1,110,000

HE_SE—NE=ZB=+—HILEEE  Pro Kingtex VietnamiE#E £ [EPouyuen ViethamEZ N EREE A
711,840% T (KHEFNRC6EBETT) °

ERERBHBEREONESZFROINRARA=ZT-/\F=ZB-+NHE ZF-/\FEHAZ+EtHKZ
FE-)\ENB—HZARFAE (BRI BEFERZAST ) EHAZF—/\FOA=ZTHZEARRER
iR ER

REBEEN MERBGENKEFERZXNNERSRATEBREIREEHERS AERMKENE
MEEER-

BUIFPITEEZEE
BUYFRTEFEZRRBEEIRBHBERBNREETHRS (BB IZEFERS ) TEIZFRZEBENHERE

o
A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RAEE KR RIEEXBHBEPREIIL:
B—RBRFERIBEFRRET L &

REREZSFRINBBRAFEERNTEAR T REEEADMBERETL -
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EFEHE(H)

HEBEX S ®

ERE%HENZ S

AAFREEREZHYA EREBEHMATRH(EBRBEBENEI0000R (KB ZIELHBERE
SARBRUNMZEZRE | Y2RBEHRB)B7ACRAREELTRUMEFEFERZNOXBAR MG - 5
ZERGEHER - AREZZBAERE LHRAUF14AMFBEHERBERORG I ERAEBATKE
NWZERXRZMEHNER TG

TEER
AAB 2 AEERREBNAERE79FME -

F B LR

AEBEET-NFZAZ+—HLFENEBLOE S8F{EB THRETRRTEHRRAEERKEROTH
BRAFHRFECBAZIVMBERE] FoAF/AZ[ERBEIRFBECHEZ[EEEN REDT SN - AEH
¥ RO R B e B R M B R R MY 537 -

REBERERE
FEERNONRTAEBZAIHERRFLER  EERERE AEARNTIERZERER RACHERMANE
BRUVLENBRERERE RARSHE FEEETERZEE PEKE HMEMBEREEREIER -

AEBERRMANRE HERERERZAMAENSHIINEE HEREAREN  ZWEHNRAFHRTER
ZERRNBILEHRBRARAREHIFEIEN o
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3 F5 B8 )

ETFHEAEERER
REBEEA  BRARBAAN AEBEETHELEAEBLEEREAREZABMERRER -

HES FEF KRR #EERHEMAGSOEFNRF

AEENBERDBRRAEENEE TF BRRRHEEFEFINZFNE -FAEEREREAEZENRFHE
BEREERANTEGTEEALERFNNFHGTERSBS IREIAE RUHTSRERRRE2NITFERE
itz 7 32 e HA [ #5 48 1= it 35 30l -

AEBRITRNHERZF2EANEZHEGR AEEERFNRAEEERINEGERG LE@ QS ML
(www.eaglenice.com.hk){E B HEEREB 2 Eh —ERK -

ARBEEUTIHARERREAEMAGHNESEE : (RBTREBFARE EURHKKEERFERHEESRY
BE (NAXBRBETRAUZKRENERM  F8  PHRER FEXNEFTHBREAEBRZRRNKTELR
RiAEEZ&ZMERNTRARBEREERE -

& Sl

ZXEHMEZARERSE  FRARREERREEAGREFHEBESRNR A RBAEI ZRASE -

RKREEE

=

EEA

s
—EB-AFEANBZ+AH
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PXERRS

AEBFNEFSKF2EEELR BRASERE HEURBILMEZRA - AR RN LR B MY &%+ AT #
F(EEERTAD(EXERTUANFAEEXERERNTA REEZF-NF=ZA=+—HLFE KX
EEERBRETMARZRERIN AR —EBTEEERTHAEN TR - BlREHRZEEREARAEEE R

1. EF

a. EECSHNRESZER
REAFE BEFGZHEBMABREFLHREFT TR RREFRG(RREFARG]) RREFIAE
(TREFHARE]) 2 THEHEINOT -

HEERT

EEggE
EEl4 RE BREFRE BERSNXE
BITES
BEALE(FERITHBER) 7/7 1/1 1/1
BRNF %k (BIEE) 7/7 1/1 1/1
BRFEELZT 717 1/1 0/
ZHEeNYE 717 1M 0/1
BUIFHTESE
BERE4E 717 11 1/1
BMELE 7/7 1/1 0/
ERELLT 717 1/1 1/

AEREERSHREEBEE — O RKEMEEENEE - BARAEL EFENEZHLEY
B XL REIEMERNNEEBRG-

b. BIEHMTESR
BREETRAUNEIIMGZRE RV —BEARABULFATES((BILFNTES ) AEGEEEE
ERAGAXNMBEEHERAEREND - RRETRUBIMFZATE  FEEECEESBIFRTE
ERHBIMBLENEERED  AEERS 2RBUFRTESHRA LT RIAERZBIAL -

BEBIUFQTERTZAERR=F EXZERGHINEITEZEHRRKRMGHE -
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1.

ERBE(E)

=40}

c. FERITHER
PEBLTH TR EA MBI REIERTRERNACETES AREHRE—ATEE- 8
EAA4GE - EECFRHAEEEIR tA-S—SEANBSTHEEEAAAANTRESR -
EEE TREROER EEeRARTERI AT REEREAEEMEEE Y HOENRERT
@ AAEEREANFLEEREYSENRASBREhRERES(E AEMEL FNEESHHEFR
REEEE-

d EETLEEEZAEGES

EXgEEETREEAREEY HEGHEEREEAEER NREAEEZEM BEFETEE
ErTEERBUCXZERTH EAXBEEEXERR EFRBANRAESEMEREEERE
BERGZRERE -

BEESETHAERSIREEFAESELEN2NET EREFFETHBER TEERETE
F7F:

(i ARANEHERZET BERZEY RLZEGLFHEREST -JZEENER BHORE
BEHNEEAREEEEERE TAQNESFETEE

(i) THAES HEEKEEAEEEXZENAEEE YAHEEFTEE X
(i) AEENSAEEERK HEERREHSLEIFNET LtAHNEEZEEE -

EFETHRNERERE  UERERAREESCAQEINRTRARREGENBRBRAT
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1.

EEERBS (&)

=40}

e.

EE-EREREBER

REARBDZHEABERAA FMEEFEHARIEBZF—RBHEERE BEEFEXREZ2ENESUE
BEREERTZR EABETELARARREAE NEBEARBEFENE  UEBERARA TERE
BEXE  HERBESEET-

FEENEERERTBEAT LEAESNRAALHELAZEEE BREAZEATHESY
B HEFERE ERFEENEMLE  RAZETTRE LT HAE08R3 09 ENE
RUSHRR AT - MERBITENTESNREAR  RNAFS i8R 851365551 0B T
PSR -

EFETEFRS
AR ERMEMBRAMRE+ZRETA  FAERESETESFRBZBTER - KAMBESF
HEEERR SEFCHEIBREFRBEFEHECSETEETA -

EFERERESRRE
AAREREEEASABENREARNEARTHFLHEENREZH -
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=40}

HEERER

EEQATKTREASERE SANEAESESHEEMABRER  EPREAEENEBUR LT
ARBEENAENREUEE - N AEETTEMHREREMIF - UERNEHEFTNNH
M AEEERENEERHERLTRAKAEMEAEERTNENBERE WSt MY
REFGCEELERNBALERET EELSREBEASTERERIES - UERMAMSRE

BREHA -

RAFE EFZSHELTEI:

EilELE
HITEE
BmEFILE A,C
BR/ANR A A,C
RIS EL L A,B,C
SEeNE A,C
BUIFHTESE
BERL4E A.B,C
EMESE A,C
BREL T A,B,C

A EBERABRMEZEN
B: WEMNE & LI WE
C: REBEEREEXNEZTBAENEE HHREHEN

ARAWE
REMERETABA2BES  TRARINAERY - LBEER
FHOBEREREIIRTE -
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EEERBS (&)

2. EE£EY

FHESS
P ER e AT EFERALEAMABBIFRTESRERAENERELEEN - BRER
FERFWESENER -

FES SN T EREABMESEI] L —EEAREZHENER UHEEERSREBEAEN
FUER RSBRAQDEERE BENRERRT Fﬁi’zﬁﬁﬁ}ﬂ MEEEEZENANTEERSRE
BEAENFHEMEECRERA T EXERTATAMREXEB 1. 20(MFARER) URBIZEFRNTE
ERFE -

FHESEBFEVET—REZ - REEFE ZELRTHREZ FHESSXENXELFE
Enﬁmnaﬁﬁﬁuyu—lc

HiE 81T
EZEEERE BENRE
BEZLE(EE) 2/2
EEAEE 2/2
EMESLE 2/2

FWEEERAEEETHNIEHELRMT :
() BREFLEBRERENNFREE YOEFTSTREIBERBUREME X

(il MEABARABE_F-/\FAB=ZTHLEANERNGHESR RAEFTTRLEBERZDNT
EEEREBEERIXNERBIAL -
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2. EEFETw

a. FHMEEEW
RELEELRTUTUGIEBNL  AEESREEENE (FNEEESFE)RBE_F-NLF=R
=t+—HBLEFEZFEFMERFBOT

B < & [ BE A
ZFZF1,000,0005% 7T 0
1,000,0013& 7T 1,500,000 7T 1
1,500,001 75 2,000,000 75 1
2,000,007 7T Z2,500,0003 7T 1
2,500,001 JT 23,000,0005 T 0
3,000,001 7T Z3,500,00058 7T 1
3,500,001 7T Z4,000,00038 7T 0
4,000,001 7T Z4,500,00038 7T 1

5

RBEZFE-NFZR=T-—HLFERTRIESFMNFBHNMBHRRMES -

b. BE%ZET
BN EEEHAN AU TESEHR -EEE R AR ERCEONENEREERLESE K
ENEERSHELNBEIERES YRABXZETNERRAERFRA LTRNEI2ENERE -
EREEeAEREEENZEOREGERMANSEAREN  ARKHEBIE BEXRZEREANS
ERREENESERBAEVERT—REE WTESFCLEEEHESE 8 eNBEALES
TG WEBTHSEMUTEEMAYRE  BERE REATRHEMEHERENERS
£
() AAEEERMBREEFHNERN
(i) TEIEZBANERRB IS
(i) AATNBEZNERIMNEZBEFORE : &
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Year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E—NEZA=+—HIEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-)\EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TFET
REVENUE EXRBA 5 2,700,780 2,109,422
Cost of sales H & B A (2,283,010) (1,703,605)
Gross profit EF 417,770 405,817
Other income and gains, net Efl A\ &Mz - R 5 7,556 12,828
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBX (33,345) (33,528)
Administrative expenses THRAX (197,186) (154,733)
Gain on deregistration of a HH—ENE AR 2 W HE
subsidiary 30 - 47,099
Finance costs Rl & R A 6 (12,120) (3,817)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 72 Bl & F 7 182,675 273,666
Income tax expense FrERAX 10 (44,527) (43,654)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEFEEF 138,148 230,012
Attributable to: &AL -
Owners of the Company ARNEHEE A 140,418 230,012
Non-controlling interests TR EER (2,270) .
138,148 230,012
EARNINGS PER SHARE ERAREE AEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEREN HK cents HK cents
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 b (11 Bl
Basic RN 27.7 46.0
Diluted #E 27.7 46.0
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GotENER

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE—ZT—NEFE=ZF=1+—HIFEE

2019 2018
—g-hE —E-)\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&T THET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEH 138,148 230,012
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ HitmEms ()
(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZBEFAEEHNIE
that will not be reclassified to FEDNEMESEKE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: () :
Actuarial gain/(loss) on a defined benefit TR EEIZEEWE
plan (EB#E) 4,067 (4)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZHEBIERTEE
that may be reclassified to EaWEMmemkaE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (X)) -
Exchange differences on translation of EBINEBZERER
foreign operations (75,642) 83,001
Realisation of exchange fluctuation = 3 — R B B A B RFEE =
reserve upon deregistration BER#EZRR
of a subsidiary - (32,128)
(75,642) 50,873
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHMLEmKE (XH)
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, (EMBRRE)
NET OF TAX (71,575) 50,869
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAEELEKEELE
THE YEAR 66,573 280,881
Attributable to: &4 :
Owners of the Company P N/NEIEZE SN 68,639 280,881
Non-controlling interests IR R E S (2,066) —
66,573 280,881
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SEHBRAR
31 March 2019
—E-NFZHA=+—H
2019 2018
—EB—AFE ZE-)N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MZE - BEKEE 13 924,268 768,759
Prepaid land lease payments M T HEERIE 14 130,270 60,877
Goodwill mE 16 100,334 26,112
Intangible assets BmEEE 17 16,817 —
Deposits ®E 15 35,271 13,937
Deferred tax asset B FERR 18 & E 26 - 1,695
Total non-current assets EREEERE 1,206,960 871,380
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 7E 18 501,901 381,985
Accounts and bills receivables & I BR TR e R 4B 19 411,242 234,072
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfTHIE - & K&
receivables H At & IR I 15 96,515 56,100
Tax recoverable A I [B] 72 7k 7,503 1,777
Pledged deposits EiREER 20 15,204 —
Restricted bank balance R &l 2R 1T 45 &R 20 585 2,639
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITHEER 20 193,834 222,870
Total current assets MEEELEE 1,226,784 899,443
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBaE
Accounts and bills payables EAERERRERE 21 258,169 145,767
Accrued liabilities and other EitaEk
payables HMEMAFRIA 23 187,589 110,268
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t R IE{TE RN 24 572,155 196,800
Tax payable & 1 #R 18 37,308 17,414
Total current liabilities mENEEEE 1,055,221 470,249
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENE E R E 171,563 429,194
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & E&EEIMR A& HE
LIABILITIES 1,378,523 1,300,574
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
BEMBRAR(E)

31 March 2019
—F-AFZA=+—H

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)\E

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5x FET FET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER

Pension scheme obligation RIS 5T EI &R 25 14,321 13,951
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIE & E 26 39,435 15,316
Total non-current liabilities FREBEERE 53,756 29,267
Net assets BERE 1,324,767 1,271,307
EQUITY B4

Equity attributable to owners of AT HEE AEIHELE
the Company

Issued capital ERITERA 27 5,320 4,997

Reserves & 28 1,298,760 1,266,310
1,304,080 1,271,307

Non-controlling interests KRR E LR 20,687 —

Total equity BEARMBE 1,324,767 1,271,307

CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING

EHEA BRIV

Director Director

EFH EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

424

BEERDE

Year ended 31 March 2019

B &

BE_F-—NFZ/A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE A
Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital  account reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B&fT 3] X BE EX FERK
kx  EEER fiE BBEE RBEE 2FE @ RRER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TEn TEn TER TEnT TER  TER  TER
(Note 28)  (Note 28)
(Miza8)  (Rfzkas)
At 1 April 2017 RZZ-tEMA-B 4,997 472,586 (229) 62,111 47131 523,753 1,110,349 — 1,110,349
Profit for the year EERA = = = = — 230012 230012 — 230012
Other comprehensive incomel(expense) EEEMEEUNE/(X):
for the year:
Actuarial loss on a defined benefit plan TEENHARERE = = = = = (4) (4) - (4)
Exchange differences on translation of NEBNEBZERER
foreign operations — — — = 83,001 — 83,001 — 83,001
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve  HH—EHBAFKER
upon deregistration of a subsidiary REEREZER = = = - [3212) - (32128 - (32128)
Total comprehensive income for the year EESANEER = = = = 50,873 230008 280,881 — 280,881
Transfer to reserve HRTHE = = = 2,194 = (2,194) - - -
Transfer of reserve upon deregistration of HH-HRBLAAREEZ
a subsidiary #E = = = (7,758) = 7,758 — — —
Final 2017 dividend “3-tEXBRE " = = = = = (29,981) (29,981) - (29,981)
Interim 2018 dividend Z5-)\ERHKE " = = = - - (89,942) (89,942) - (89,942)
At 31 March 2018 RZB-)\E=A=+-H 4,997 472,586* (229* 56,547* 98,004* 639,402 1,271,307 — 1,211,307
At 1 April 2018 RZF-\EME—-H 4,997 472,586 (229) 56,547 98,004 639,402 1,271,307 - 121307
Profit for the year FE R - - - - - 140418 140418 (2,270) 138,148
Other comprehensive incomel/(expense) EEEpEERE/(Xt):
for the year:
Actuarial gain on a defined benefit plan EREENHAEE haE - - - - - 4,067 4,067 - 4,067
Exchange differences on translation of REBNEBRZERER
foreign operations - - - - (75,846) - (75,846) 204 (75,642)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) EESENE/(XH) BE
for the year - - - - (75,846) 144,485 68,639 (2,066) 66,573
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 29(o) - - - - - - - 22,753 2,753
Transfer to reserve BREHE - - - 4,694 - (4,694) - - -
Issue of shares Bk 27 323 93,728 - - - - 94,051 - 94,051
Final 2018 dividend “8-\ERHRE l - - - - - (59962  (59.962) - (59,962)
Interim 2019 dividend “S-NERERE 1 - - - - - (69955  (69,955) - (69,955)
At 31 March 2019 RZB-nE=A=+-H 5,320 566,314* (229 61,241* 22,158*  649,276* 1,304,080 20,687 1,324,767
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZEREREEEINGAUBRARNGESH
HK$1,298,760,000 (31 March 2018: HK$1,266,310,000) in the 51,298,760,0008 T (ZF8—/\F=ZA=+—H :

consolidated statement of financial position. 1,266,310,000% 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED SH\TEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERENER

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE—ZT—NEFE=ZF=1+—HIFEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)\&E

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5x FET TFET

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid

REEBEEZHEESRE

B 762 Al 0a Fl 182,675 273,666
B TIEERAZ:
=g 6 12,120 3,817
WTFI BN 5 (1,695) (1,789)
nE 7 72,621 53,986

Taft £ A & SRIE

land lease payments 7 2,485 2,037
Amortisation of intangible assets #& & & {# 84 7 2,947 i
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEMZE  BEK

items of property, plant and HREEEEER(KE)

equipment ® 317 (719)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HEFE L ERIE KRG

lease payments 5 - (1,645)
Gain on deregistration of & i — [ 2 B W i

a subsidiary 7 - (47,099)

271,470 282,254

Decrease/(increase) in inventories B (8 hn) 37,070 (85,333)
Increase in accounts and bills ﬁ%uﬁ,ﬁﬁm&ﬁ%i‘éﬂﬂ

receivables (23,541) (108,621)

Increase in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in accounts

FEMRE BZEk
H i FE I SR I8 B2 10 (8,926) (6,010)
FER BRI R = (B D)

and bills payables (57,097) 12,220
Increase/(decrease) in accrued BstaBE R EMmEN

liabilities and other payables SIE N, (R (22,507) 33,896
Increase in pension scheme BAEFE & EE

liabilities 5,044 4,279
Settlement of pension scheme  HERAEHEEE

liabilities (156) (53)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted 3[Rl $R 1T &5 8% k4 (3% hn)

bank balance 2,054 (2,639)
Exchange realignment BE &2 3 2 (20,753) 5,834
Cash generated from operations ZEE4XZIERE 182,658 135,827
Interest paid EMFE (12,120) (3,817)
Dividends paid ENMEKRE (129,917) (119,923)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBMNER (15,013) (26,507)
Overseas tax paid EfBINRIE (24,166) (17,421)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KB/ (AR REEEZ

operating activities HEnE3E 1,442 (31,841)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
BEHERER(E)
Year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=ZF=+—HIEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)\E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 T#&T FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KRB EEFEZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal HEME BERKE
of items of property, plant and B E &S RIERE
equipment, net 1,002 993
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid Hi & &+ A & I1E
land lease payments, net FT S s IE 3B - 2,463
Purchases of items of property, BEYX WMENKXEER
plant and equipment (96,348) (116,957)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B /B8 A B 29 (190,286) —
Interest received ElKF 2 1,695 1,789
Decrease/(increase) in non-current &% IEFBNER 2, (3 0)
portion of deposits (21,334) 8,175
Increase in pledged deposits B #E 15 7 38 0 (5,941) —
Net cash flows used in investing FARKREFE
activities ReERERE (311,212) (103,537)
CASH FLOWS FROM A REMETBZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITY
New bank loans, net and net cash Fi R 1T &
flows from a financing activity FEEKRBME
EBZRERERE 296,615 53,200
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReEkReFEEER)RE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,155) (82,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRekAEEEEEE
beginning of year 222,870 290,934
Effect of foreign exchange rate  FER# &)~ & & % E
changes, net (15,881) 14,114
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £ 2 HRE R
AT END OF YEAR R&FEHHEH 193,834 222,870
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HR&RkEESEEHIEH
CASH AND CASH ZESER T
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & KR IRITEEER 20 209,623 225,509
Less: Restricted bank balance B R R TR 20 (585) (2,639)
Less: Pledged deposits B EREER 20 (15,204) =
193,834 222,870
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CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower
B, Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and
trading of sportswear and garments.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MERR M

31 March 2019
—FE-AFZA=1+—H

AR REEEH

ARBARAESHETMBRIZARA
B o &R A B 5 fit # = & #b 3k 2 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman

Islands * KRB Z EBEAEMBMUNE
BT R ERIT B0 E R T OBEA
120902-0903 % &% 0905-0906 % °

FEEZIEXEBREEREEEHR

R

MEBABZER
ARBEERBEL

Percentage of equity

ARENT -

Place of

incorporation/ at:ril::utable o
registration Issued share/paid-up the Company
and business registered capital 75 23 ] FE i 1 42 9 93 L

Name MR ERTERE 2019 2018 Principal activities

EES BREREEME YREMEX bl — T )\ F EEER

Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting 100 100 Investment holding

W= (REEE)BRAR gE deferred HK$10,000 (Note (a)) BREER

(2018: Ordinary HK$2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)

LER2E T BRERETRR
10,000 7T (B 5E(a) )
(ZF—)\F: BTEKR2ETT
IR EHERIERR10,0005% 7T)

BECUE) BRERAE The People’s Republic  US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YM (Shantou)”) of China (“PRC")/ (2018: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (d)) Mainland China 23,500,000 7T HERBEEEHRKRER
(M 3= Clisa) 1) (B &£ (b) K (d) ) hE AR (=% —J\% : 23,500,000% JT)

([FRE ),/ 5B K RE

Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

EEXERRERERAA 55 (2018: HK$1) sportswear and garments

1B (ZF—/)\F 18T HERBEEEHRKRER

Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of

RE(EXEE) BRAE aE (2018: HK$1,000) sportswear and garments

1,000 7T EEXREEER R R K
(ZF/—/\4 : 1,00037T)

ERBRHHUREGRAA PRC/Mainland China ~ HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Maitex PRC") RE R K R (2018: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (d)) 40,000,000 7T HERBEEHRKRER
(FEzRR 1) (M 5 (b) K (d) ) (== —/\% : 40,000,000 7T)

HItBEBERARBERAAF PRC/Mainland China RMB 100,000,000 80 — Manufacture and trading of
("Hubei Dongneng”) FRE, K R A R #100,000,0007C sportswear and garments
(Notes (c) and (d)) HEEXRBEFEES R R K
(FHAAeEhaE ) (K st (c) K (d))

Pro Kingtex Vietnam Co., Limited Vietnam US$1,800,000 100 — Manufacture and trading of
(Note (d)) jgea) 1,800,000% 7T sportswear and garments
(B 3 (a)) EEXRBEEES R R K
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2019
—E-AFZHA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

PEIREERER @

MEBARZE&ER (&)
ANATEWBARRENT : ()

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued share/paid-up

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company

and business registered capital ARG E T

Name MR, BRTR 2019 2018  Principal activities

AGIE:Y BREREEME BREMEE bl )\ F EEEYR

King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2018: HK$1) 100 100  Manufacture and trading of

SE(EXEE)BRLE BE 18T (ZF—/)\F 18T sportswear and garments

EEREEES R R AKX

ERBEEUXEGRAE PRC/Mainland China ~ US$4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Hung Eagle Garment") B, [ K B (2018: US$4,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (d)) 4,000,000 7T AEREEEHRKZMAK
(TERZE D) (HI 5 (b) K (d)) (Z%—/J\4 : 4,000,000% 7t)

Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Hong Kong HK$1 (2018: HK$1) 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited &E BT (ZE—/\F: 1387xT) REER
W= (ENE) ERBRAE

P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$32,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
("EN Indonesia”) ENfe (2018: US$32,000,000) sportswear and garments
(MExENe ) 32,000,000% 7T SEREEEHRRZMAK

(=% —/\4 : 32,000,000% 7T)
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
ExCIA) BRBRAF B (2018: HK$10,000) REEK
10,0007 7T
(=% —/\4 : 10,000% 7T)

BEEEHUXERAA PRC/Mainland China US$25,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("EN (Yifeng)") RE R K R (2018: US$25,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (d)) 25,000,000 7T HERBEEEHRREK
(T (EE) ) (K& (b) K (d) ) (Z%F—/\ £ : 25,000,000% 7T)

Notes: fgEE -

(a)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, (a) ERZEEERLEEZMNERES BF

BREREHESTLRE  TEETERR
BEEARESEANGEE(FERER
& 38 B% 42 22100,000,000,000,0007% JT 73" ik
FRAAEEREEAR  AHEERDZHE
FNRRIIESR N EEFRSM)

no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights
to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a
winding-up (other than the nominal amount paid up or
credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company in such winding-up).

(b)  YM (Shantou), Maitex PRC, Hung Eagle Garment and EN (o)  #MECLER)  BREFEH BREBRESE
(Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises (BEE)ARBPREAEAMZIETEEDL
under PRC law. £

(c) Hubei Dongneng is registered as a limited liability company (c) HALEBREARBREEREMZBREMR

under PRC law. NAE e
ZEEBNEEVBERRRALCEELKE
SR EB AT RKE RS R E A E
B -

(d) The statutory financial statements of these entities are not (d)
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the FTRFAENBARHALNBEERE -

Company.
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continuea)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group"”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

PEIREERER @

MEBABZER &)
ERINEAREMBLRE  REEFERR
B REQNAHAEEFNEEREERY
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W R B A
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ANEREEZ T -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary; (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest; and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained; and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the income statement. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the income
statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

standards for the first time for the current year's

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 15

with Customers
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property
Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

11
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2019

- AFZH/A=+—H

HREE e
AR E)

HAEBREHNBEA D 2 =H# - 85
BRERNZMBRAEZEE (BERE) X
BE (MEMIFERREREER 2 REE
RliGt \ERZ RFTERERH  WHER
(B EZAFE: (MEAREBREZ
ANEE: RlilWBERPEAEEEEZ
BERTEIE - REIR H M2 E i PR
ZREBREMODEFTPEERTRN
BEaf (NER)  MASEEEENE
HEAEENGBENANR —EERER -

B BURRIKEEE

AEERAFEMBHRERRERXEMALUT

Hra] R B ET#E R

EBUVBREEN NURGRERMTH
SEORRIERT REZHERIE
BEEVBREEN REZSEUBIHREER
FEASRIERT FAF RS HIE

EEMBREEN 2@ITA
Eel

BEEVBREEN XEEFEAH
51558 ISEL @

EEUBRESEDN BEEEHBHRESEL
E155R1EET BIsEKREEFEL

HI & ZE A

HE DT ERFI0R HEREYE
(EH)

BE(BEBRMBRE SEXZRANTAE
HEZET)RE
0258

ZE—EE EBMBREERNE1H
ZE—NFHEE kEB G
B4 B2 EViSACH)



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Z=Z—HhEFR

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,

HKFRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers and Amendments to
HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has had no significant
impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial liabilities. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, all of the Group's
financial assets are reclassified from loans and
receivables under HKAS 39 to financial assets at
amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or
loss to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss (“ECL") model either on a twelve-month basis
or on a lifetime basis. The Group applied the
simplified approach and recorded lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present
values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life
of all of its accounts receivable. Furthermore, the
Group applied the general approach and recorded
twelve-month expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the possible default events on
its other financial assets within the next twelve
months. The effect of replacing HKAS 39's
incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9's
expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) is disclosed in
notes 19 and 37 to the financial statements. The
adoption of the ECL model has had no significant
impact on the impairment allowance for doubtful
debts as at 1 April 2018.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in note 5 to the financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

revenue.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption. Under
this method, the standard can be applied either to
all contracts at the date of initial application or only
to contracts that are not completed at this date.
The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 April
2018.

The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale
of goods include only one single performance
obligation. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised at the point in time when control of
goods is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods. The Group has concluded
that the adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no
significant impact on these financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23’

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
April 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
measure the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use
asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTlNG POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. \Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

118

AFEEE
AEEARSREPREAFEFEBET
AERITE - AFEATHBSHEENE
AREEFRRGTLEEEMBTRME
RIBEBREMINNER - QA FEFE
DRERIRHEEENERRENRS
REEIRBEIETEN(ERIENH
BRAT)REEBTSETMAEL -T2
EEREEBTHEARAEEUEANZT
5 BEIEBENATFENERRRTES
HEREENRBEERTURELE
MmTEFE-

FEMEENAFEFERFRTES
HERFEAZEEERREAERES
BE ARZXEELETFERAXEEEN
REAERRSEENEMTSESRE -
PR EE £ BB 3 ©

FEERNEARTRBERERE#ER D
HEUHAERTFENGEL L UBE
ERERTEREGABIBLREERDE
RATREEANEE -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED T35 (BB ) = R B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019  =Z—NF&ER

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 = based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land under finance  Over the lease terms
leases
Buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationship is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 6 years.

Backlog is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 1
year.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTlNG POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)"
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’'s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments) (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the income
statement when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for
loans.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
income statement in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 April 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability in
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the income
statement over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1  —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTlNG POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOU NTlNG POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills

payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside the income
statement is recognised outside the income statement,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the
expenditure incurred in the construction cost of an
infrastructure project, are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Scheme. Contributions to the Retirement
Scheme are charged to the income statement as
incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar
way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in
the Group’s employer contributions vests fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer
contributions.

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China and Vietnam are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme for their
employees who are registered as permanent residents in
Mainland China and Vietnam. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETHRBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit
pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained profits through other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the income
statement at the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the income statement by
function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.

145

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

24 FETTBRERBME @

BHERE

BN BERNLEEGEREE (BIE—
BRBRRBEGTEEZEERERAEHEE
ZEE)EEBBZEERAY TFUER
 ERZEEEZHORE BEEZF
EEABLEZFHREARALERS
- HEBEERFEEREEZRXAE
ERAFREMBRNZEERN  #REX
EERATER - IEHMEERAR
EXHEXE BENAEEEERES
BEEENMNBREMBAE -

s

HBRERUBTEE  BRHEARTZ
EEEH AEERBERETHASINEE
B MBEERMBERRFAZERD
BZNEEEHE - AEEETEELK
WIERGANTRRZBREE ZTEE
EWIERTI - LUMNKIIENEREER
BERRESHARNNEERERRE - B
ERFEHEERREEENEFRINK
m R o



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IR A Al ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Z=F—hEFR

Notes to Financial Slatements (cnminued)

MEBRNE(R)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZ/F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, their
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2019 was
HK$100,334,000 (2018: HK$26,112,000). Further details
are given in note 16.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Group takes into consideration information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

148

EEEHE REF @

fhst 2 A @)

BERE
ﬁ%@?hiﬁﬁmﬁﬁaxﬁ%mﬁ

ERNAGTEEMESRZEREESE
ﬁ&ZﬁmEﬁoﬁﬂﬁmEﬁﬁ'xﬁ
BEAGHRESELEVNMEEZEHHE
He&ERe TAREGEZIEE DGt
BEZERsRNECHE BENRIS—H
F=H=+—HZRHE{E%100,334,000
BIT(ZF—/\F 26,112,000 TT) - &

— S E RN EE6 -

EWRRK R B8/ 1E

AEERKEAMEEERBESEN B
BRI R R AR BE RN TR RN A S E K -
AEBEERABREEENERBRRNE
HEEFRE BEXREEBHEBER
AN EFFHNERARBETE -

BEEERVEZAEBNELATHREE
NERETE - AEEFEERAEREBELHEE
EEREEERCEREEEENR - fI20 -
MRFBAEERRTBERKR—FERNB -
BRREHAERENHERN  ELE
MERBELRAE  -NREIKREEH - EET
BRENXSBREN LA ARKEALE
BERNEL -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED T35 (BB ) = R B IR A Al ANNUAL REPORT 2019  =F—N4FF

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
- AEZF=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEgHHE ARG
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) et 2 EEE &)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts BRI AR S EEEEE &)
receivable (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical HESIEFZENR  BAKERZMTE
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and HEEBEZENEBEENIGE B
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is EEMG - EHEEEESERSIRERERE
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast BUMKEBERALZE AEEBNELEFE
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss 85 18 4% B A 3 4% 75 AR 5 B TEORI B R B 4K
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also RRREFERENER -

not be representative of customers’ actual default in the

future.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable at 31 March RIFB—NAFE=ZA=+—8  BREZRN
2019 was HK$403,624,000 (2018: HK$233,831,000). BR [ {8 A403,624,000/8 70 (— & — )\ F :
Further details are given in note 19. 233,831,000/ 7T) ° FEIEHMNMIEE19 ©
Business combinations EESH

When the Group completes a business combination, the HAEBETRERSH  BIFTKERN T H
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed MEERFAENGBREATERR -
are recognised at their fair value. Management EEMREEE FIREEER BERE
estimation is required to determine the fair values of the HNATEE UIERASEEERER T #HKAE
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and the ErAENEEREEEMGE - FIKREN
purchase consideration, and on the allocation of the AHNEERFMAENAGENAFEER
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and T ERAGERN (BEMRASRER) &
liabilities. The fair values of the identifiable assets E o ZEEAFTASBENRER TR
acquired and the liabilities assumed may require the use HEMSGNE HEARATERLT A&
of valuation techniques including the discounted cash EHAERMGEE - UEILAFEEEFTARR
flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from HEMEMAERE -

observable market where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement and estimation is
required to estimate the expected future cash flows and
discount rate in establishing fair values.
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MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that
there are five reportable operating segments, based on
the location of customers (the destination of sales),
including Mainland China, the United States of America
(the “USA"), Europe, Japan and others. These segments
are managed separately as each segment is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income and other unallocated
income and gains, a gain on deregistration of a
subsidiary and unallocated expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

150

4.

RENHEEN

MEEMS  AEEUSRFAER(HE
BRM) RER BEABAKRSEED
B SEREKE ZARGRE(SE
Bl BN BAREMME - ZF 058
Bl /2 B A0 [ 38 A Al B H fth 2 &R 1M 28 1L 2
g o

EEEBHIEREEE RS  DUEF
HBRERDERRRFHIIREK - 28
RBTDRB AR S 2R - AT R
0 EREE M A UG R BRI AE A 5T 2 -
RABRRBRIAEN WA ETNERAEEH
BREEMNFESTX - EEREFEL
REAFBWN - HAth K 45 B A & IR
o FEE-KWE RS2 W MR R
W o

PREETNEERIEEE  FERZF
EEREREE-

PHEEBEFEERTEEE  REEZF
REREEEE-



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED T35 (BB ) = R B IR A Al ANNUALREPORT 2019 —Z—AFFR ,,f

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2019
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEHFEN @
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)
2019 —EBE—hEF
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others Consolidated
F K x£H R HE HftitE= RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: DHEEERA
Sales to external HETFIHIARE
customers 1,097,635 725,423 419,467 80,337 377,918 2,700,780
Segment results DEEE 133,449 88,169 55,297 9,170 60,580 346,665

Interest income and other | 2N\ K& H At
unallocated income and K&K

gains K& 7,556
Unallocated expenses  K#RE X H (171,546)
Profit before tax B 15 8 % A 182,675
Income tax expense FieExX (44,527)
Profit for the year REEZHR 138,148
Segment assets NEEE 1,086,532 412,564 284,888 46,559 215,334 2,045,877
Unallocated assets RIRREE 387,867

2,433,744
Segment liabilities NEEE 300,643 86,879 46,718 7,697 41,129 483,066
Unallocated liabilities AEREE 625,911
1,108,977
Other segment Hit &R
information:
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation 22,098 16,402 8,673 1,897 7,714 56,784
Unallocated amounts KRB EHA 21,269
78,053
Capital expenditure*  EABIX* 265719 33541 11,634 1,765 20,766 333,425
Unallocated amounts KRB &8 9,466
342,891
B Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * ERAEAXRRFEYE BREERZRE K
equipment and prepaid land lease payments including assets EMLIHMEAERE ERCEKERBL
from the acquisition of subsidiaries. BAR8EE-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

RENEER @

2018 —B-\F
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
SEDN ESJE BN HA HfttE o)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET FTET FET FET
Segment revenue: NEEERN
Sales to external HEFHRER
customers 753,101 636,840 311,858 67,848 339,775 2,109,422
Segment results DEEE 125,291 109,997 51,000 11,379 54,516 352,183
Interest income and other ) B I & E fth 5k
unallocated income and  #& EC WU\ & &
gains 12,828
Gain on deregistration of F#H—RKKTBAE
a subsidiary 2= 47,099
Unallocated expenses  K&REXH (138,444)
Profit before tax BR % Al & A 273,666
Income tax expense Fi8MEx (43,654)
Profit for the year REE 5T 230,012
Segment assets DEEE 504,606 399,641 243,274 81,321 239,671 1,468,413
Unallocated assets AL EE 302,410
1,770,823
Segment liabilities NEEE 106,298 93,715 44,194 9,352 49,157 302,716
Unallocated liabilities PN 1A=L 196,800
499,516
Other segment Hit &R
information:
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation 12,053 14,226 6,277 1,564 7,251 41,371
Unallocated amounts REEREHE 14,652
56,023
Capital expenditure* BARRFX* 35,726 32,180 15,822 4,234 17,170 105,132
Unallocated amounts AL e® 11,825
116,957
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BEABETRENE BERDBENRE -

equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information — non-current assets

4.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

REQTEER @

WEER — FRBEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)\E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Hong Kong &5E 19,701 19,955
Mainland China AR [E K B 871,884 644,565
Indonesia ElfE 170,931 179,053
Vietnam e 44,110 —
1,106,626 843,573

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill and a
deferred tax asset.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$1,819,380,000 (2018: HK$1,407,865,000)
and HK$553,259,000 (2018: HK$529,600,000) was derived
from sales to the largest customer and the second
largest customer of the Group, respectively. The above
amounts include sales to groups of entities which are
known to be under common control with these
customers.
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MEERRE(R)

31 March 2019
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. &3\ K H fth it K I

GAINS, NET R AR
An analysis of revenue is as follows: EEANZAITAOT :
2019 2018
—EB—hEF ZE—/)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHBT
Revenue from contracts with REEBEFELHNEERA
customers 2,700,780 —
Sale of goods HE B M - 2,109,422
2,700,780 2,109,422
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFSHNERKA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) HBEEEBRNEH
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_SE—NE=ZBA=1+—HIL=E
E
HK$°000
T#ET
Geographical markets i =
Mainland China FR B K B 1,097,635
USA E=H 725,423
Europe O 419,467
Japan =N 80,337
Others H b i & 377,918
2,700,780
(ii) Performance obligation (i) BHEF
Sale of goods HE B g
The performance obligation is satisfied upon BHEERRCTEYRFTA - M
delivery of the goods and the payment is generally R—RERMB—E=EHNEE -
due within one to three months from delivery.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a HERTMZEZRNREYIEH#E
point in time when control of goods is transferred EREFRER  —RBEERM
to customer, generally on delivery of the goods. B
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. Z UK Hith A\ K IK

GAINS, NET (continued) m o R
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: HMBARKE  FEZ22TOT :

2019 2018
—B-AhEF ZE—/)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Bank interest income WITFE WA 1,695 1,789
Income derived from financial assets EAFEFAEBZNESME
at fair value through profit or loss/  E /At HEREN

available-for-sale investments KA 1,184 633
Government grants* BB 4,031 3,872
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEYE BEAXEER

property, plant and equipment, net  Z K% (EBiE) - R (317) 719
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease & ¥E{ L #hH & FHIE

payments 2 W= - 1,645
Foreign exchange differences, net E R ERREE - 3,437
Others Hi 963 733

7,556 12,828
G There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to @ % % 17 B I £ 18 ROE R R HF AR BE S AR
these grants. HIF o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RMIERE
2019 2018
—F-hEF —F-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Interest on bank loans WITERAE 12,120 3,817
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MBERRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NF=ZHA=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BRRA0EF
AEBERBATRRLNR GIA) TS

(crediting): HERF/E -
2019 2018
—B-hf —F-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 2,283,010 1,703,605
Auditor’s remuneration 12 SR B < 3,980 2,767
Depreciation (note 13)* T E (BFEE13)* 72,621 53,986
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE T 3 FE E FRIE
payments (note 14)* (KfzE14) * 2,485 2,037
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#E (ME17)
(note 17) 2,947 =
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EEREMXH(REEESEK
directors’ and chief executive's TRARKME — MzEs)
remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries TERF® 582,404 458,287
Pension contributions, including a BARSHFH 8FER
pension cost for a defined benefit EREBEAEINRAKRE
plan of HK$5,044,000 (2018: X 255,044,000 7T
HK$4,279,000) (note 25) (ZF— )\ £ : 4,279,000
B 7T) (M¥5E25) 104,687 71,955
Less: Forfeited contributions W BRI - (12)
Net pension contributions BRAEHFFEE 104,687 71,943
Total employee benefit expenses* HIEEBEA TR 687,091 530,230
Foreign exchange differences, net ERERTE 1,205 (3,437)
Minimum lease payments under operating &&HLY T 2 HRKHEEHIE
leases 5,688 —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEYE BMERZREEEZ
property, plant and equipment, net BB (W) SR8 317 (719)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease HEEM LB ERE
payments Z W - (1,645)
Income derived from financial assets at AT EFGTAEBHZWEF
fair value through profit or loss/ BE/MIHEERENKRA
available-for-sale investments (1,184) (633)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary HE—ENBLEZ & - (47,099)

* Included in the respective balances are the following amounts *
which are also included in the cost of inventories sold

disclosed above:

FEAERTEEUTHANLXAKEES
FERAZEER:

2018
—E—)\&E
HK$'000
FHET

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Employee benefit expenses

&
A 1 7H & SR I 8

51,674

39,678

2,163
600,877

1,693

BERFXZH 452,916
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MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFNITHEHM=E
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the AEEEERTHRESWNESREST B
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the BRGMER B HESFLHAAY  FER
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Bl B125383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ ()R OEKRAE
Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (WKEEEMNTER) REIFE2EBHEAT ¢

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018
—EB-AhEF —EB—)\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET TET
Fees wE 456 438
Other emoluments: H B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ - EM K EY @A
kind 10,039 9,620
Discretionary bonuses B 15 7L 4L 6,716 4,500
Pension scheme contributions BAREFTEIHR 1,288 1,234
18,043 15,354
18,499 15,792
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIERTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FERNRAFRALENTEEZEESN
directors during the year were as follows: TS s
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —F-)\EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho BRERELE 152 146
Mr. Lu Chi Chant B E %L 152 146
Ms. Tham Kit Wan EREL L 152 146
456 438
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRNTEEMEMBILIENTES
independent non-executive directors during the year ZHE(ZE—/)\F: &)
(2018: Nil).
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MBRRMWE(E)
31 March 2019
- NF=ZHA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EENTTHAEZME »
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e RMR Bk g
g ENEd MEEA stEIBEER WEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET TER

2019 ZE-hE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BB %4E

("Mr. Chung")* ([ExED* - 3,730 3,642 517 7,889
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying ~ B/NEXE - 3,497 2,984 484 6,965
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, [BHFEx+L
Christina - 2,529 79 287 2,895
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan FHEL2%E4 - 283 1" - 294
- 10,039 6,716 1,288 18,043
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e ORUK Bk
ik ENMEA RiER A FTEIER i & 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET TET
2018 —3-)\f
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEFEE = 3,568 2,500 495 6,563
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BNEEE = 3,345 2,000 464 5,809
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BEELL
Christina = 2,436 = 275 2,711
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan  ZHE2 %4 = 271 = = 271
= 9,620 4,500 1,234 15,354
2 Mr. Chung is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive * BRENBANANER RITBA
Officer of the Company. e A
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not
include the estimated monetary value of the
Group’'s owned premises provided rent-free to an
executive director, Mr. Chung, during the year. The
estimated rental value of such accommodation was
HK$154,000 (2018: HK$184,000) for the year ended
31 March 2019.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2018: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2018: two) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out below:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

EFRITHREZRME @

(b) BMITES#H)
AEENTEEMEETHREREDE
BREEMMEZZHE -

LRI REEMES A RBIEREN
MEMTESELERBERENASE
BEEVMEZGFBE - BEZE
—NWF=A=+—HLEFE &F
B2 iE s H{EA154,0008 5 (Z &
—J\£E : 184,000 TT) °

hLamaE#HmES

EN BEBEFHERSE=S(CS
—\E:ZR)EE BRESHM
BEELXMESHE -NBE_S2—H
EZA=+—BALEEN BTWE (S
T\ W) BEWENEERES
SEESITEIRE

2019 2018
—F-hEF ZEF-)N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in  ¥i& 2 LREYETF

kind 4,585 4,027
Discretionary bonuses ) 1% 76 4L 2,075 1,500
Pension scheme contributions B & 58I R 631 316

7,291 5,843
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MBERRME(R)
31 March 2019
—E-AFZHA=1+—H

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

TEamaHMES @

MENFUTHRENRSFMHEESRE
EMHEBWT :

Number of employees

ESHE

2019 2018

ZB-hEF —B-)\FE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E2,000,0007 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - i
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T £3,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T E4,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007 7T 1 —
2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC

being effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income
tax rate for all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fis i @
Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in REEENFRARERBERFL  —XK
Mainland China, a company may set off losses incurred NEABER—EVHREEEEZEIE -
by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the KEEREZ—EAXZEHTBFEE 2 H
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum fl BERZASEBAEMBEE -
of five financial years.
2019 2018
—B-hE —F-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Current tax charge for the year: AEEPRETH
Hong Kong &8 17,138 17,176
Elsewhere Hibith 7z 25,512 14,380
Underprovision/(overprovision) for BIEFENBAREREG
current tax in respect of prior years @& (B%8) (200) 2,358
Deferred (note 26) IEIE (Fff 5226) 2,077 9,740
Total tax charge for the year AFEEREXHAELE 44,527 43,654

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the tax
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

BRARUARBREKE W E B
BRHNRBEEEEEERXAEZRR
BEfZMEXHERERBREXFAEZ
MERXZHERAT

2019 2018
—B-hE —F-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Profit before tax B 152 B #) 182,675 273,666
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in 12 7HE BT 1B A HE @ %% 7
the tax jurisdictions concerned BRAZREFEZRE 37,560 48,872
Adjustments in respect of current tax FtIBEEEEERIEMEL
of previous years B (200) 2,358
Income not subject to tax BAERR Z A (3,239) (9,046)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHRZER 2,596 4,103
Effect of withholding tax on the NBAEEZ FEHEBAA
distributable profits of the Group's AokaflEiliR e
PRC subsidiaries 1,500 1,435
Tax losses utilised from previous BRI HEENREEE
periods — (4,068)
Tax loss not recognised RERRIEBE 6,310 —
Tax charge at the Group's effective RAEBERKRIRHEZ
rate MIE X H 44,527 43,654
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—E—-NFZ/H=+—H
11. DIVIDENDS 1. K2
2019 2018
—g-hE —E—)\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET
Dividends paid during the year: FNEMEKE:
Final in respect of the financial year #HE_ZE—/\F=H
ended 31 March 2018 — HK12 =t+—HLEMBEERS
cents (2018: HK6 cents) per B — BERTERI12E
ordinary share (ZF—/\F 6581 59,962 29,981
Interim — HK14 cents (2018: HK18 HHIKE — SKRZ&ERK
cents) per ordinary share 148 (ZF—/)\F:
187&41l) 69,955 89,942
129,917 119,923
Proposed final dividend BRAEEKER
HK6 cents (2018: HK12 cents) per 5 i L B e Sl
ordinary share (ZE;—)\FE 128141) 31,920 59,962
The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the AEEZBRRARPREDRRAREH
number of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and ERTZRMHBEE  LEFTANTK
is subject to the approval of the Company’s RREERRBFRGHERTAES -
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ZEVBRRRUERREMSKBRE -
These financial statements do not reflect the final
dividend payable.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. A BB ARG SKRE T

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year of HK$140,418,000 (2018:
HK$230,012,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 505,790,000 (2018: 499,680,000) in
issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the new
shares issued during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRME(E)

31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

13. % - BB RRE

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles Total
HE
HE LR #®£E R
g HENRRE RRE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT TER
31 March 2019 —B-hA£=HA=+-H
Cost: BUA :
At beginning of year &) 763,971 172,460 318,957 81,860 1,337,248
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B 22 Al (i E29)

(note 29) 118,342 4,413 40,785 6,000 169,540
Additions NE - 38,302 46,693 11,353 96,348
Disposals HE - - (2,966) (329) (3,295)
Exchange realignment ERAE (35,795) (9,605) (13,580) (3.212) (62,192)
At 31 March 2019 RZZF-NE=ZBA=+—H 846,518 205,570 389,889 95,672 1,537,649

Accumulated depreciation: REBEHE:
At beginning of year &M 181,575 113,786 207,350 65,778 568,489
Provided during the year FEREE(HE7)

(note 7) 25,994 16,080 24,642 5,905 72,621
Disposals HE - - (1,664) (312) (1,976)
Exchange realignment ERAE (8,709) (6,435) (8,103) (2,506) (25,753)
At 31 March 2019 RZZF-NE=A=+—H 198,860 123,431 222,225 68,865 613,381

Net book value: BRENFE -
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=ZBA=+—-H 647,658 82,139 167,664 26,807 924,268
31 March 2018 - )\E=ZB=+-H
Cost: BOA :
At beginning of year & 703,728 111,221 245,061 68,520 1,128,530
Additions HhE 2,257 48,843 54,944 10,913 116,957
Disposals HE (406) (567) — (2,288) (3,261)
Write-off b §ic) = (65) (1,078) = (1,143)
Exchange realignment ERAE 58,392 13,028 20,030 4,715 96,165
At 31 March 2018 RZF-N\E=ZA=+—-H 763,971 172,460 318,957 81,860 1,337,248
Accumulated depreciation: RBHE:
At beginning of year ) 143,334 97,076 178,953 60,522 479,885
Provided during the year FEREE(HE7)

(note 7) 25,365 7,690 17,157 3,774 53,986
Disposals HE (136) (567) a (2,284) (2,987)
Write-off 6| — (65) (1,078) - (1,143)
Exchange realignment ERRE 13,012 9,652 12,318 3,766 38,748
At 31 March 2018 RZZF-/N\F=BA=1+—H 181,575 113,786 207,350 65,778 568,489

Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 March 2018 RZB-N\E=ZRA=+—-H 582,396 58,674 111,607 16,082 768,759

As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's leasehold
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$61,884,000 (2018: Nil) was pledged for the banking

facilities for issuing bills payable.
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MEBRExME(E)
31 March 2019
—E—-NFZ/H=+—H
14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. A LA ERIE
2019 2018
—g-hE —E—)\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET THET
Carrying amount at beginning of year E4#]REE 63,019 59,541
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) WK E & (FfEE29) 77,003 —
Amortisation recognised during the TR PIRERE S
year (note 7) (fF5E7) (2,485) (2,037)
Disposals HE - (818)
Exchange realignment BE SR B (3,320) 6,333
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZEHE 134,217 63,019
Current portion included in FEATEMNRIE  RERHEM
prepayments, deposits and other & W FRIE Z BN HA &R 5
receivables (note 15) (PF5x15) (3,947) (2,142)
Non-current portion BN HAZR 92 130,270 60,877

One of the Group's prepaid land lease payments with a
net carrying amount of HK$1,356,000 (2018:
HK$1,480,000), together with the leasehold buildings
thereon, has been provided as rent-free accommodation
to Mr. Chung, an executive director of the Company
during the year.

As at 31 March 2019, certain of the Group's prepaid land
lease payments with a carrying amount of
HK$39,958,000 (2018: Nil) was pledged for the banking
facilities for issuing bills payable.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 15. EfIFMIE  IRE R H B
OTHER RECEIVABLES N E
2019 2018
—E—hE —E—)N\E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT &E FET FHBT
Prepaid land lease AN THEENRIE
payments 14 3,947 2,142
Prepayments Fa T RIE 37,330 32,018
Deposits and other &5 K HoAth & R IE
receivables 90,509 35,877
131,786 70,037
Less: Non-current portion of &l : BEYE  WEX
deposits for REEEN
purchases of items EENEAE D iR E
of property, plant
and equipment (35,271) (13,937)
Current portion BNEA &R 2 96,515 56,100
None of the financial assets included in the above ARG BIEN R E E I @ H R
balances is either past due or impaired. The financial B - BFEEU FERFIELAGRANNE/RE
assets included in the above balances relate to B EER N R ERED 8% o AT E 2R
receivables for which there was no recent history of BBANGEERIIE MRIB—HIHF
default. Their recoverability was assessed with reference ZE=+—HNEHGEEBEERBRH -

to the credit status of the debtors, and the expected
credit loss as at 31 March 2019 is considered to be
minimal.
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MBERRME(E)

31 March 2019
- NF=ZHA=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. &
2019 2018
—g-hE —E—)\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Cost and net carrying amount: BAEKRIREE :
At beginning of year REA 26,112 26,112
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B 2~ B (M9 5%29)
(note 29) 74,222 =
At end of year REXR 100,334 26,112
Impairment testing of goodwill AmEREERNR
PRC CGU ONE o B 5 & 2 4 B U — 5%
Goodwill of HK$26,112,000 (2018: HK$26,112,000), RBEE_SFT/N\F=ZA=+—HILFE
arising from an acquisition during the year ended 31 & 17 W B P EE A4 RO R 26,112,000 T
March 2008, was allocated to a cash-generating unit in (ZF—)\£F :26,112,00087T) & BEH
Mainland China which is engaged in the manufacture BEREREEHRAEREEREEZ
and trading of sportswear and garments (the “PRC CGU REeELEMN(FEBESELEN—
ONE"). A
The acquired subsidiaries of PRC CGU ONE generate FTERREREEABEMN—FZHBEL
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash BEAMNESRAAKRE LB IRKREE
inflows from other assets. HEEMNRESRA °

166



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED T35 (BB ) = R B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019  =Z—NF&ER

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

PRC CGU ONE (continued)

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a five-
year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross margin
which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the
discount rate of 16% (2018: 18%), which is before tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the PRC CGU ONE.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The
directors believe that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU ONE to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

Vietnam CGU

Goodwill of HK$36,075,000 (2018: Nil), arising from an
acquisition as stated in note 29(a) during the year ended
31 March 2019, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Vietnam which is engaged in the manufacturing of
sportswear (the “Vietnam CGU").
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MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2019
—E—NEFE=ZF=+—H

16. BE »

R RENR @

HEREEEEE M —E
FEHERESEABEMN—RZKEIESETIR
BEREBEET MEREEIREES
BEBAEEMN 2 AEHMKEERE
HZzRERENE - MBRBEEZHREDIR
MRER - BEFERENAERZERE -BEE
MEZTERRAFMBEEZEANR(EIR
EHREEEZEEMERZ FHEF
K)RIFTIHEI6% (ZF— )\ F:18%)
(75 BR# Al e [ AR EE AR B30 <& 2 A B8 i —
FEREZEERR) AFHNENERES
MEFEAINZERE(ZE—/\F :3%)
HE - EEAE  FAZEBRUESE
MHRZ S8 BATERPRESEE
B SR EREEBHER IKEE5E -
HRFTEEBESELEMN—F 2 IKOE
EaREREE EEXRARBEHERE
23 4 B IR RE o

BEEEELEN
REBEZE—AF=B=1+—HILFE
HE 1T WBE (R B 5E29(a) 3R BR) FTEE E 9 7S
36,075,000 (ZF—/)\4F : #\) &
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MEBEHRME(R)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZ/F=+—H

16. GOODW"_L (continued) 16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Vietnam CGU (continued)

The recoverable amount of the Vietham CGU has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a five-
year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual performance and development
expectations. The key assumptions for the cash flow
projections are the budgeted gross margin which is the
average gross profit margin achieved in the vyear
immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate
of 15%, which is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the Vietnam CGU. The cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
3%. The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the Vietnam CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Vietham CGU is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

PRC CGU TWO

Goodwill of HK$38,147,000 (2018: Nil), arising from an
acquisition as stated in note 29(b) during the year ended
31 March 2019, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Mainland China which is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of sportswear (the “PRC CGU TWO").
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

PRC CGU TWO (continued)

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a five-
year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual performance and development
expectations. The key assumptions for the cash flow
projections are the budgeted gross margin which is the
average gross profit margin achieved in the vyear
immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate
of 16%, which is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the PRC CGU TWO. The cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3%. The directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU
TWO to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since
the recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO is higher
than its carrying amount, the directors consider there
was no impairment of the goodwill at the end of the
reporting period.
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MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

16. BE »

R RENR @

HE B & B (4
FPRREESEABU_RZKOERETIR
BEAEEET MEREEIRESRS
REBABEBMZAEHMBREME
AZREREFFE - MBREEZHETIR
MRERKRELRARAZER RERNEZETE
BRAMBAREZENR(EEFEEFE
B2 FEMERZ FHENER) RITRE
16% (T3 BRME AT K R AR B2 R IR & EE £ B8
UNZRBRAZBERR) - AFHURDY
REREEMAI R ZIEREELH - EXEH
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RIREEBLBTREIEE - BRPEE
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MBEHRRME(E)
31 March 2019
—FE—AF=ZF=+—H
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BB E
Customer
Backlog relationship Total
RERERE EFR® st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FETT
Cost at 1 April 2017, RIEBE—tFW™A—QH -
31 March 2018 and —_F—-)\FEF=HA=+—H
1 April 2018 AZFE—/)\FEA—HNW
A — — —
Acquisition of subsidiaries I EE KB & (FE5E29)
(note 29) 2,838 16,926 19,764
Amortisation provided during £ P9 884 2 % (Fd3%7)
the year (note 7) (2,365) (582) (2,947)
Net carrying amount at RIFB—NAE=A=+—H
31 March 2019 B BR EDRE 473 16,344 16,817
18. INVENTORIES 18. & &
2019 2018
ZE—-h&E —EB—)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHEIT TFETT
Raw materials FEM 221,100 183,805
Work in progress T8 & 156,213 114,285
Finished goods B4 RN i 124,588 83,895
501,901 381,985
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19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES

The Group’s accounts and bills receivables mainly relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. The
credit period is generally for a period of 30 to 90 days
(2018: 30 to 45 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by the management of the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
accounts and bills receivables balances. The accounts
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing. At the end
of the reporting period, 55% (2018: 75%) and 15%
(2018: 23%) of the total accounts and bills receivables
were due from the Group's largest customer and the
second largest customer, respectively.

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZA=1+—H

9. BENERR R FiE

AEBZEWERIEBRFEHEE TR
AIREERIFNEFEE -EE8H %A
30REIOK (ZF—/\F : 30KE45K) °
AEERHBREZSERBERRBRS
BEEE  BEERBEHERENKFE -
BHERMZERBEAEEEEECHE
B AEFLAREBEREREIEZERE
KR R E iR E S - EER
RREBAHRERR - RBEHER - A%
BEEAREERE_AZEDRLAER
FEWBR R & EIRAEZEE5% (ZF— )\ F ¢
75% ) ’%15% (ZF—)\F : 23% ) °

BEARSHIEZBRERRZBERE
LREAHNRE2TNOT

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —F-)\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Within 30 days 30K W 284,442 179,753
31 to 60 days 31E60X 46,630 14,312
61 to 90 days 61ZE90XK 68,711 30,024
Over 90 days 90K k£ 11,459 9,983
411,242 234,072
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

19.

BEWRARER 2

(continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended

31 March 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
No impairment allowance has been provided as at 31
March 2019 as management consider that the expected
credit losses are not significant given the receivable
balances are related to customers for whom there are no
recent history of default and the balances are not yet
past due.

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 March 2018

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
as at 31 March 2018 that were not considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

BE_F-NF=ZA=+—HLEE
RIBEEMBERSENFRMNEIE
REHE BRI RAREEREETRE
o UG ERBEEEE - BEXiRE
HERFERANRERHZAHXHG
B ZGIERRIRXMELER E¥E
EERBEEARITSHNERETEER B
BT AR 390 e R 2R A7 {6k 4 FRORI B9 & 38 e AT
SFER - HRE AR A4S bR LT HA 30 ]
RN EFEBEGREREE 88
EERARPCERRRBERM  EitR
—E-NAFZRZ=+—HULEFRRE
-

BE_F-/\FZA=+—HLEE
RIBEFBGENFEIGRMRE
RZZB—-/\E=ZA=+—0 REFEG
&t 2 Rl 58395K AN 48 43 ok {5 B9 & W AR 3k &
SRR AT ¢

2018
—E—)\&F
HK$'000
FET

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due:

Within 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

Over 90 days

B £ 380 HA 71 F R (B 190,866
BHA
30KMA 6,867
31E60K 33,100
61ZE90K 1,574
90K U E 1,665

234,072

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended

31 March 2018 (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of customers that had a good track records
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company were of the opinion that no provision
for impairment under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect
of these balances as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCE AND CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRME(E)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZA=1+—H

19. EINERFA R EE @

BE_F-/\FZA=+—HLFE
RIBF B G ERE3GRAREE )
EE HAE R B E Y E KBRS A S E
BEREFNEFETHENETEFERM - REB
NENEE AAREERRBARESR
B E 5T 2 B SE395R Bl 3% F S BR 1 HURE
BE NEEERLERZSH RERD
WA R A = BUkE -

20. 2k

2018
—E—hE —E—)\&E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THBT
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITHEER 209,623 225,509
Less: Restricted bank balance for B RPEAREEOREN
import purchases in Mainland 52 PR #l 8R 17 45 &R
China (585) (2,639)
Less: Pledged deposits for banking & : AESRITHERAEE L
facilities for issuing bills BHTENEBNE
payable I ER (15,204) —
193,834 222,870

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$150,054,000 (2018:
HK$139,567,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBRRMWE(E)
31 March 2019
- NF=ZHA=+—H

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED

21.

BANK BALANCE AND CASH AND
BANK BALANCES (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances, pledged
deposits and restricted bank balance are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

EIRHGER  ZREIRITLE
BRI RIRITEER @

FRE|ETHREREBERTERNEXZ
FEBEXRRAE c AEEZIKREH
ZE—BE=ZERANEHTEHEFTN &
70 B3R A8 HA T B 7 SR R BRER A 2 < $R1T
B BMETERMERHERTERDE
MR EFEREHRRRRGCHKZIRIT

21. BRI REE

RESHRZEMERREBEREESR
HHARRE AT

2019 2018

—F-hEF —E—/)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FHET

Within 90 days 90K 237,916 143,246
91 to 180 days 91&E 180K 519 1,523
181 to 365 days 181E365K 19,084 147
Over 365 days 365K X £ 650 851
258,169 145,767

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 45-day terms.
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22.

23.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's banking facilities of
HK$818,750,000 (2018: HK$627,100,000) were supported
by the corporate guarantees of HK$685,300,000 (2018:
HK$627,100,000) executed by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 March 2019, an
aggregate amount of the Group’s banking facilities of
HK$572,155,000 (31 March 2018: HK$196,800,000) was
utilised.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

22. IRITHEREE

AZE—-NE=ZBA=+—H  AEEIR
1T & 3 %8 E818,7500,000% 7T (Z F — )\
£F 627,100,000 7T) AR A B R AL E
= T BB 2 8 1 2 5 #& £8685,300,0007
TT(ZF — J\ & :627,100,000% 7T) ° R
ZE-NEZB=+—H " AEBEMIRT
EREEEHAE572,155,0008 7T (=
F—/)\F=H=4+—H : 196,800,000
JT) °

. Bt AR HE M E A RIE

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E—)\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TFET

Other payables HEMEMRIEAE 66,236 47,950
Accruals st & H 121,353 62,318
187,589 110,268

Other payables of the Group as at 31 March 2019
included a subsidy of HK$2,043,000 (2018:
HK$2,253,000) received from the People's Government
of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the
construction cost of basic infrastructure by the Group for
the development of the investment project in Jiangxi (the
“Jiangxi Project”). During the year, an amount of
HK$210,000 (2018: HK$424,000) was utilised and has
been offset against the construction cost.
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MBERRME(E)
31 March 2019
—E—-NEFE=ZH=+—H
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 24. sTERITEM
BORROWINGS
2019 2018
—E-hE RN
Effective TTCN  HK$'000
interest rate (%) BEEFIER (%) Maturity Ep:G 1| T#ET FET
Current 1Dt
Bank loans SRITE 2.04% to 3.28% 2.04%FE3.28% On demand fEE 3k 572,155 196,800
(2018: 1.42% (ZZ:—)\&:
t0 2.50%) 1.42% %
2.50% )
As at 31 March 2019, bank borrowings of RIFB—NF=A=+—H ' 442,550,000

HK$442,550,000 (2018: HK$196,800,000) were supported
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2019, HK$127,955,000 (2018:
HK$47,100,000) of the bank borrowings were
denominated in USS$.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the
amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are
analysed as follows:

#HIt (ZF— )\ : 196,800,000 75) KSR
TRERANARAANTDE THBARZ
M ABERELR -

RIB—AE=A=+—H " RITEET
127,955,00078 75 (— & —/\ £ : 47,100,000

DR
—FRREEX

Analysed into:
Within one year and on demand

BIT) UETTEHE -
RIBRITERZERY - RITEREL =
BAOMMT
2019 2018
—F-hE —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
572,155 196,800
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25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its
subsidiary in Indonesia who achieve the retirement age
of 57 years (2018: 55 years) based on the provisions of
the Indonesian Labour Law Number 13/2003, through an
unfunded pension plan.

The plan is exposed to salary increase risk, interest rate
risk and the risk of changes in life expectancy.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31
March 2019 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent
actuary with a licence from the Indonesia Ministry of
Finance, using the projected unit credit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

25.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

BIKEEHEI&E
KEBEEREE S T A 513/20035% R
T BEEEEFUR KRB AZERLR(Z
T—)\F  5o5R) BRERNENEHRBA
EEERMEERN -

S BAEETS AR  AERARLE
HEGRBAR -

EEGEINETREZRNIBEEGERED
JE B4 BUEB 38 F] %8 37 #5 E B [ Biro  Pusat
AktuaraF BRI BN EEREGHEEZR
—E-NE=ZRA=+—HEE-

REEWRARAZEEZRERRAOT ¢

TRE(%)

Discount rate (%)
Expected rate of salary increase (%)

At Fr & R R (%)

2019 2018
—E—hE —E—)\&F
8.81 7.69
7.0 7.0
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MEBRNE(R)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZ/F=+—H

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 25. 1B

(continued)

KEAEIEE @

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RBEHER ERXBRZEEHRED M
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is FIRMT
shown below:
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in net in net
defined defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate  obligation in rate  obligation
REGEH REGH
HiEEE BHERE
¥, ¥,
b= B G ) LEZE TR G )
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
THTT THTT
2019 —F-hEF
Discount rate IR =R 1 (2,564) 1 3,249
Future salary increase R AR < 18 0 1 3,277 1 (2,624)
2018 ZE-)\F
Discount rate IR = 1 (2,499) 1 3,153
Future salary increase RIRFr =18 h0 1 3,143 1 (2,534)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.
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(continued)

The total expenses

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

in the consolidated

income statement in respect of the plan are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

25. BIKESTEIAE @

MZAENGEERERERZHAIBER
LI

2019 2018

—F-hEF —F)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FHET

Current service cost RERBRA 3,807 3,490

Past service cost 18 & IR 75 B AR 211 —

Interest cost FE K 1,026 789

Net benefit expenses BAHRXFE 5,044 4,279

Recognised in cost of sales TREH & B AR 4,291 3,559
Recognised in administrative RITE R X R

expenses 753 720

5,044 4,279

The movements in the present value of the defined

benefit obligation are as follows:

EHEENEEREZZSHUT

2019 2018

—_B—AEF —E—)\&E

HK$°000 HK$'000

T#&T FET

At 1 April RIEE—H 13,951 10,033
Current service cost RE R A 3,807 3,490
Past service cost 18 2 IR 7 B A 211 —
Interest cost B RA 1,026 789
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (W) (4,067) 4
Benefits paid =R Rl (156) (53)
Exchange differences E R ERE (451) (312)
At 31 March A=HB=+—H 14,321 13,951
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
MBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2019
—E—-NEFE=ZH=+—H

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

(continued)

25. BIA 5 EI&E @

EHEBHNETZEFHUOT :

The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as

follows:
2019 —E—hE
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
REBRNBZERERE HtteERE 2 BN E(KE)/BR
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from arising from included  Exchange
included in changes in changes in  changes in in other differences
1 April Service Net the income Benefits  demographic financial ~experience comprehensive on a foreign 31 March
2018 cost interest  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income plan 2019
R®
R® HBRR GR¥EER ZB-hE
8-)\% FARER ADBREHE 2DELr LHEE HARMEE SAHEN
mA-B E®EE HERE 2hit  EfER 4£2REEH REZY NEEEH Bzt ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TERT TERT TERT TER TER TERT TERT TET
Defined benefit obligation EERAEL 13,951 4,018 1,026 5,044 (156) (1.411) (3,654) 998 (4,067) (451) 14,321
2018 —E—/)\F
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
REBROBZEAERA Hih2ERE 2 BN E (Ki) /FR
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from arising from  arising from included Exchange
included in changes in changes in  changes in in other differences
1 April Service Net  the income Benefits  demographic financial  experience  comprehensive on a foreign 31 March
2017 cost interest  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income plan 2018
R’
R’ BBRR  EREE 3-0\%
8-tE FARER ADBREHE  4BELr L£HEL FARME  HAGHER =B
mE-H  BBHEX  FEFE it BfER EZREES BEYY MEERD EREZMG  EREE Z1+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
Defined benefit obligation EREENER 10,033 3,490 789 4,279 (63) - 557 (653) 4 (312) 13,951
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

25. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION

(continued)

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan

assets are as follows:

25. BIKESTEIAE @

FEIEEREZAFEZEZSERNNT

Equity instruments BEATER
Debt instruments BEEIER
Property LYES

Expected contributions to be made in the future years

out of the defined benefit obligation

are as follows:

ARBFEZEREBHNEEEHHRER

nr

2019 2018
—B-AEF ZE—/)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
N/A FiEH N/A 7R 3E
N/A FiEH N/A 73
N/A FEH N/A & F

2019 2018

—_B—AEF —EF-)\&F

HK$°000 HK$'000

T#&T FHET

Within the next 12 months KEK121E B A - =
Between 2 and 5 years 2Fb4F 63 48
Between 5 and 10 years 5ZE 1045 1,043 1,620
Over 10 years 10 £ 1,311,571 871,719
Total expected payments TEEA T TR AE 5 1,312,677 873,287

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period is 20.29 years (2018:

20.25 years).
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MBEHRRME(E)
31 March 2019
—E—-NEFE=ZH=+—H
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. I iE R 1E
The movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax AEBRENNECEREEEELER
liabilities of the Group during the year are as follows: HEESEWT :
Deferred tax asset REREEE

Losses
available

for offsetting
against future
taxable profits

o] F LU 85
RIRFE R EF
Mg E
HK$'000
TFHET
At 1 April 2017 XA _F—tHFEWMA—H 9,096
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income FNFAGERERDN
statement during the year (note 10) EERIE (fFEE10) (7,911)
Exchange realignment BE 2 SR B 510
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 AZE—-/\FE=ZB=+—H
kR_F—/)\FWMEAB—H 1,695
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated income ERNEGREREROKRH
statement during the year (note 10) EERIE (FEEE10) (1,582)
Exchange realignment BE 72 SR B (113)
At 31 March 2019 N _F—-NAF=A=+—H -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EXEMRIE @)

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset profits of PRC
depreciation revaluation Others subsidiaries Total
FEIF B A A
MERIE KA TER
nE BEEM Hith ZEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTERT TERT THET FTERT
At 1 April 2017 RIF—tF
B—H 180 8,864 — 3,941 12,985
Deferred tax charged to the ENEFRERERNGEN
consolidated income statement BERIE (HEE10)
during the year (note 10) 394 = = 1,435 1,829
Withholding tax on repatriation of FEIKE AR E LA ENTE
eamings from subsidiaries %
in the PRC - — - (467) (467)
Exchange realignment BRI = 969 = = 969
At 31 March 2018 RZB—-)\F=zZRA=+—H 574 9,833 = 4,909 15,316

Accelerated

Withholding
taxes on
undistributed

tax Asset profits of PRC
depreciation revaluation Others subsidiaries
HEREAR
MERE R T
nE BEEf Hith ZENH it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERT TER TERT TERT TER
At 1 April 2018 RZIE—)\F
B—H 574 9,833 - 4,909 15,316
Deferred tax charged to the ENERERERRINE
consolidated income statement FERRIE (K E10)
during the year (note 10) - (268) (737) 1,500 495
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) KB H B 2 7] (B EE29) - 21,441 4,061 - 25,502
Withholding tax on repatriation of KB A E AR
earnings from subsidiaries ni
in the PRC - - - (1,465) (1,465)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (413) - - (413)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NF=A=+—H 574 30,593 3,324 4,944 39,435
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MBEHRRMWE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5% (2018: 5%). In
estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected
to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008, the directors have made an assessment
based on the factors which included the dividend policy
and the level of capital and working capital required for
the Group's operations in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with the investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$60,176,000 (2018:
HK$41,120,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has estimated tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$11,414,000 that
will expire in five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised during the vyear in respect of losses of
HK$11,414,000 as the directors consider that it is
uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has estimated tax
losses arising in Vietnam of HK$74,524,000 that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
during the year in respect of losses of HK$74,524,000 as
the directors consider that it is uncertain whether
sufficient taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.
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26.

EERIE &)

EEREE&RE 2
RIBPERE - RPEKERILZIER
BLERIEFREESRZEERBER
WK10%FEIR - ZMENR_ZBF/\E—B
—H&EXR EEEARZSEEFELtFE+IH
=t+—HBEEZEF - 4 FEAKEEE
B EE 2 A A ET M RBIRL - BT
BREEEAELIRRE AEEZBERAR
EEL% (ZE—/)\F 5% ) - FEfHEZE
REKXERZBATDMR ST /NE—
A—H®EEMET T8I IKE K BT
METEIRE  EEEIHEREREBR
REARRKRAEHEEMTERARE
BEEESKTFERE - AERECEREBEEE
MBI REMRBAT ZRENTREE
A A H A 460,176,000 T (Z =
— )\ : 41,120,000 JT) °

RIFB—HE=ZRA=+—H8 AEEHG:T
REPBKEEE ZRIERBEES11,414,000
BT BRAFEWNEE  BERERHEE
BIET  c HRESRATEEERHAN
FEERUB IR AT A AR IERE - BT
ZENIERL11,414,00058 5 B 12 HE R
BEERIEE E -

N_BFB-NE=BA=+—H  AEE MK
R E & 277 18 B 18 774,524,000
T BRAFWNEIE - BERE HEER
BT c HREERATEEE CHNE
SRR R BNRIEEE - T

FE NI EFL74,524,0005 T K 5 B RE R IE
LEMIBEEE -
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27.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NFZHA=+—H

DEFERRED TAX (continued 26. EERIA )
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) BEEREAESEE)
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had estimated tax RIB—/N\E=ZB=+—H ' AEEH &G
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$6,781,000 that MR AR B K B E & 2 # 1H K5 48 %4%6,781,000
will expire in five years for offsetting against future BT BRAFWNEE - AEREBEE
taxable profits. There are no income tax consequences RIET o AR B EH B IKEE &S S
attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company MERESRER -
to its shareholders.
ISSUED CAPITAL 27. BETERA
2019 2018
—E—hE —F-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THBT
Authorised: BETERAK
10,000,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZF—/\F:
10,000,000,0008%)
BREEOETZ
=R 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE :
532,000,000 (2018: 499,680,000) 532,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZB—/)\F:
499,680,000f%)
FKREE0IBITZ
=8 R 5,320 4,997
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MEBRME(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

27. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued) 27. EZ1TERE
A summary of movements in the Company's issued ANBEERTRANESEBM AT -
capital is as follows:

Number of
ordinary
shares in Issued Share
issue capital premium Total
BE81T
EEiE#HE ERTERE B fn i (& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FET TFET
At 1 April 2017, 31 March RZZ—t &
2018 and 1 April 2018 MmA—H -
—F-/\E=H
=+—HXk
—F-)\F
MMAE—H 499,680,000 4,997 472,586 477,583
Issue of shares (Note) TR (M 5E) 32,320,000 323 93,728 94,051
At 31 March 2019 R_FB-NEF
—B=+—H 532,000,000 5,320 566,314 571,634
Note: fesE -
On 22 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in RZFB—NAF—BZ+H  A&EEIKEProspect
Prospect Converge Limited. Part of the consideration was settled by Converge Limited 100% B&#E - FH R EEEEZIT
way of the issuance of 32,320,000 ordinary shares at HK$2.91 per 32,320,000 & 22 91 BT (AR ARZE—H
share, being the closing share price of the Company on The Stock F—BZ+_HREBHERIMERLANK
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 22 January 2019. The details of HRHE) 2 EEBREN -  WIBFEBHRRUBRSE
the acquisition are set out in note 29(b) to the financial statements. fft 5£29(b) °
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28.

29.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain portion of their profits after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@ On 1 June 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests in Year Fortune Group Limited and Faith
Year Investments Limited and their respective
branch and subsidiaries (collectively the “Vietnam
Group”) from Pro Kingtex Industrial Company
Limited (“Pro Kingtex”), an indirectly non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings)
Limited (“Yue Yuen”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, for an aggregate consideration of
US$31,618,000 (equivalent to HK$248,201,000). The
Vietnam Group is engaged in the manufacture of
sportswear. The acquisition was to further expand
the Group’s production capacity outside of
Mainland China and to build up the production
capacity to cater for market growth.
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28.

29.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

i
AEENAEERBEFEE L HESE
RESBHENMEERT 2EA B
CLESEIR

FEEERAFEREEARIRBE-ST=
FN\BZEBEA([EED FABRBREL
ANRAEESR HEREETZAAR
IR AEE K& 3R A 1,000,000 5 R E{E0.01
BTREEANRIIFHBERNDEZESE -

REEETERL - EREFMONEL
AARE THMONRREBEN (RHEE
RARPIEE) BREATERGHERE EE
ZRENEREIESBEMELRL0% -
EERTERGMEETRIBRT - &
EERBHEETRERERESGE -

XBaH

(a RIF—I)\EANA—H F&EEM@
ARl —BEEREHITIE(E
B)AERAR (B 2EEELE
Mt B 2 TlPro Kingtex Industrial
Company Limited ([ Pro Kingtex |)
K B&EYear Fortune Group Limited &
Faith Year Investments Limited » X
REZEBNIABERHBAR (4
(M EEEE])MN100%&E - BRE
#31,618000% J(MH % R
248,201,000 7T) - MK E L ER
EEHR WEEEE—TEREXK
SERPREKREMIMZER UK
RAEREDEMBIER -
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MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. ¥/ Hw

(@)  (continued) (a) (#&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and RKEHE SEEENT#HE
liabilities of the Vietnam Group as at the date of EXBEZAFEUT :

acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
It B B FE SR 1Y
NEE
Notes HK$'000
Fit &% THBT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 13 9,278
Intangible asset BREE 17 2,838
Inventories 7E 72,374
Accounts receivable & IS BR 3R 16,961
Prepayments, deposits and other JARIE  ReEREM
receivables F& IR IE 100,808
Cash and bank balances HE RIRITHER 53,914
Accounts payable F& £ BR 3R (13,059)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEsta B R EMEMRIE (25,253)
Tax payable & 15 R 18 (4,748)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIE & & 26 (987)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value FI#BIREENFEELE 212,126
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEEZEE 16 36,075
248,201
Satisfied by: UTHARZA -
Cash consideration REeERE 165,419
Novation and set-off of amounts due BERIKHEEKHSESEE
from the vendor of the Vietnam Group =aprdct | 82,782
248,201
Both the fair value and gross contractual amounts JFE IS BR 7R T EL b FE WX R IE R IR BB B
of accounts receivable and other receivables as at HNWATFERBEENELINA
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$16,961,000 16,961,000 7T %9,299,0007% JT °
and HK$9,299,000, respectively.
The Group incurred transaction costs of AEERHERBEENR SRR
HK$1,671,000 for this acquisition. These #1,671,0008TT - BERARZHAE
transaction costs have been expensed and are LA TN R WA R T B

included in administrative expenses in the X—Eo
consolidated income statement.
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

29. ¥ 8w

(a) (&)
FEREECERDTET BRI
B

FRKRBUEEEZRERENT

acquisition of the Vietnam Group is as follows: mr
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HEKE (165,419)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWBZHESRIBITHER 53,914
Net outflow of cash and bank balances included HFARBEREZFHZEESRE
in cash flows from investing activities KR & R IRITA R IR & (111,505)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FIAREEBREAZIRERE
cash flows from operating activities HIKEEER S BA (1,671)
(113,176)

Since the acquisition, the Vietnam Group
contributed HK$245,933,000 to the Group’s revenue
and loss of HK$3,205,000 to the consolidated profit
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have been HK$2,612,667,000
and HK$141,439,000, respectively.

On 22 January 2019, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in Prospect Converge Limited from
an independent third party for an aggregate
consideration of RMB197,788,000 (equivalent to
HK$224,242,000). Prospect Converge Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Hubei Group”) are
engaged in the manufacture and trading of
sportswear. The acquisition was to enhance the
production capability of the Group and broaden the
Group’s customer base.
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BEHERRE BUEEEREEZF
—NE=ZB=+—HIEFEFRAX
& [F & % L \ 245,933,000 7 © L
K AR E B4R G im Fl #2k3,205,000
BITEIE -

HMEHAREDEE REEZE
—NWEF=Z=A=+—HLEEE X
EENEERAREAEBEG R
&9 B A&2,612,667,0008 7t &
141,439,000 JT °

b)) RIB—NF—AZ+ZH x&EH
B — % 8 3 B = A Y BProspect
Converge LimitedfJ100% B%HE - 484X
B A A\ R #197,788,0007T (18 & R
224,242,000&7T) ° Prospect Converge
Limited Kz E it /8 22 7 (45 78 [ b &
BDRESHEREEEESR - WEE
EIRAAEEER  URBERELEER
HNERER-
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MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

29. ¥/ Hw

(continued) (b) (#&)
The Group has elected to measure the non- AEBERBEMFERBREERL
controlling interests in the Hubei Group at the non- Flst 2RI EB TR R ERE
controlling interest's proportionate share of the EHIEEBURNFTEE EY
Hubei Group's identifiable net assets excluding the ¥ BEKHRE UEKBEMLIHHE
gains on property, plant and equipment and prepaid ERBEINER - FEER R EES
land lease payments. The non-controlling interests EMitBERENEB LS HEE -
relate to Hubei Dongneng and its subsidiaries H80%M @ HProspect Converge
which are 80%-owned subsidiaries of Prospect Limited# & °
Converge Limited.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and RIKEBHE I EBER T HAE
liabilities of the Hubei Group as at the date of EREBEZAFEWNT :
acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
It B R R SR 1Y
AFE
Notes HK$'000
Ft 2% FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME BEKRZE 13 160,262
Prepaid land lease payments AN A ERE 14 77,003
Intangible asset BEEE 17 16,926
Inventories FE 84,612
Accounts and bills receivables & K BR A 18 136,668
Prepayments, deposits and other JERRIE e RkEM
receivables & W kI8 11,658
Pledged deposits EiREER 9,263
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITHER 51,410
Accounts and bills payables FE(TER AR E B (156,440)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE=t & 18 & H fih FE {4 B (74,575)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER (78,740)
Tax payable F& {5 R 18 (4,684)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEEE 26 (24,515)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value FI#BIREENFEELE 208,848
Non-controlling interests R ERELR (22,753)
Goodwill on acquisition WEBEEZEE 16 38,147
224,242
Satisfied by: UTHHRZA -
Issue of shares BT 27 94,051
Cash consideration ReRE 130,191
224,242
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Both the fair value and gross contractual amounts
of the accounts and bills receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted
to HK$136,668,000 and HK$975,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
HK$1,969,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
—®-—n#EZA=+—FH

29. ¥ 5%H=
b) ()
FE Wt B 20 e 22 48 T 4t FE ISR T R
KRN ATERESNSES
Bl 136,668,000 JT & 975,0007&
7-—5 °

AEERHERBEENRZHRA
751,969,000 8 T - BERARZHAE
B2 ET NGRS W E R TR
X—IE -

TR R DR A B A AR IR
/-

ERBBENILEEZRERED T

acquisition of the Hubei Group is as follows: W
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration HENKE (130,191)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWEZHRERIBITER 51,410
Net outflow of cash and bank balances included FTARBEREZHZEESRE
in cash flows from investing activities HIRE RIBITEEBR AL FEE (78,781)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FIAREEBREAZIRERE
cash flows from operating activities HNKEEER S BA (1,969)
(80,750)

Since the acquisition, the Hubei Group contributed
HK$114,708,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of
HK$10,027,000 to the consolidated profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have been HK$2,819,873,000
and HK$160,695,000, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BERRMI(E)

31 March 2019
—E—-NEFE=ZH=+—H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. GEHERERM:E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions FEFRERS
(i) Deregistration of a subsidiary (i) EEH—EHBZLE
2018
—EB—)\F
HK$'000
TET
Net liabilities disposed of: FrHEMNaEFRE :
Other receivable Hth FE W R IE 19
Accounts payable FE {3 BR R (1,737)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEst & B Rk M FE T =UE (8,468)
Tax payable & {7 18 (4,785)
(14,971)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve ERRBHEECRIR (32,128)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary (note 7) HH—BERBAS 2 W
(M EE7) (47,099)
There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and cash BE_S—/\E=ZA=+—HIHF
equivalents in respect of the deregistration of a ENTEGHEAHRNBAEINRE
subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2018. EEEEEEBRAN MEFHE-
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(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (cun inued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZ/F=+—H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. FEBRERERMTE @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions (continued) FEFHRERSH (#B)
(ii) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (i) BEZEELNE EEE
activities
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
A EIRITEMR
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2017 RZF—tFMA—H 143,050
Financing cash flows MERERE 53,200
Non-cash changes FEH & F
Effect of changes in foreign exchange EX@EH 2 E 550
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R_FB-)\EF=ZA=+—HK
—F—/)\FWMWAB—H 196,800
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29(b)) W B B B~ B (Bd5E29(b) ) 78,740
Financing cash flows MERESRE 296,615
At 31 March 2019 R-ZF-NAFE=A=+—H 572,155

31.

(iii) During the year ended 31 March 2019,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$82,782,000 were set off against the
consideration of acquisition of the Vietnam Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities not provided for at the end of the reporting
period (2018: Nil).

As at 31 March 2019, corporate guarantees to banks to
the extent of HK$685,300,000 (2018: HK$627,100,000)
were given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Company for banking facilities granted to the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company, which
were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$442,550,000 (2018: HK$196,800,000) at the end of
the reporting period.
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(iii) BE_F—NEF=A=+—HLHF
BN BAMRE BERkHEMEK
FRIE82,782,0007% 7T £ U i @i £
B EMRH -

1. XAREE
RIBEIAR AEEBL BT MEREEHEZ
BEAFAREBE(ZZT—/\F: #H)-

RIB—AE=ZRA=1+—H AR KRK
NEHETH B A MR 1T 4£685,300,000
BT (ZF—/\£ : 627,100,000 75) A7
EBR UNSEFTARBDERARNBDETKH
BRAANRTEREE  EPRJBEHXE
E & FH 49442,550,00058 75 (—Z /B — J\ & ¢
196,800,0003& 7T) °
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MBERRME(R)
31 March 2019
- NF=ZHA=+—H
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. R&EHERHE
The Group leases certain of its factories and office AEERBREHETHBEEAETIR
premises under operating lease arrangements which are EWMAEYE  HERER—FENFAR
negotiated for terms of one to six years and five @A -
months.
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum RIB—HNE=A=+—H x&EEBEREE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases AOEELEHEM AR TSR
falling due as follows: ZRRREESEBAOT -
2019 2018
—EB—hEF —EB—)\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHBT
Within one year —FR 8,404 —
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFAE (B1F
BEEME) 13,773 —
After five years AF® 1,573 —
23,750 —
33. COMMITMENTS 33. & if
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEERBERRZEREKENT :
end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
—g-hEF —E—-)\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&T TET
Contracted, but not provided for: BERIHERE R
Renovation of factories and AP EEREEE B
purchases of items of machinery BB NREER
and equipment for Hubei Group 12,208 =
Renovation of factories and ARUBEEERELEE B
purchases of items of machinery BHFELkZEEE
and equipment for Vietnam
Group 4,743 ==
Renovation of factories and MBS  BEHERX
purchases of items of machinery FEEE
and equipment 9,352 16,784
26,303 16,784
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

4. FEATRXRS
(a) BRRAMBHRREMILOFERNR
S REBRENHEBEE AL E
TTHNERKRS

2019 2018
—B—AhEF ZE—)\EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5 TERT TET

A related company indirectly AAT—RETERE
controlled by a substantial i 4% 1= 1) B B o=

shareholder of the NI
Company:

Rental expense HERX
Service fee R% &

Related companies directly —ZAAXEBETHE
controlled by a person who ABEZEEREFRANF
is a director of certain R EEEH R E
subsidiaries of the Group YN
and a shareholder of the
Company:

Subcontracting income RN
Subcontracting expense NBEREX

Substantial shareholder of ANBEERE :
the Company:
Service fee REE

(i) 5,581 =
(ii) 7,412 =

(iii) 1,288 —
(iii) 738 =

(iv) 902 —

(i) The rental expense was charged at a monthly
rate of US$71,184 for the year ended 31
March 2019 by reference to a lease
agreement entered into between Pouyuen
Vietnam Company Limited (“Pouyuen
Vietnam”), a related company indirectly
controlled by Yue Yuen, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the Group
for a term of three years commencing on 1
June 2018.

(i) The service fee to Pouyuen Vietnam was made
on a basis mutually agreed by both parties.
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(i) BERRNBDFEREBITEE
= &l B E 2 BPouyuen
Vietnam Company Limited
([ Pouyuen Vietnam ) BRA &
BRI ZAR=ZFERR_F—/\
FRNA—HERWHEERZ -
HEEIRBE_S—NF=
BE=+—HLELEE®REAR
71,1845 JT I EX -

(i) #FPouyuen Vietnam# iR
BREFARZEELR( -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (BIBR) =B IR A Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Z=Z—HhEFR

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

(i)~ The subcontracting income and subcontracting
expense with Guangdong Dalian Garment Co.,
Limited (“Dalian Garment”) and Foshan City
Honglian Garment Co., Limited (“Honglian
Garment”), related companies controlled by
Mr. Huang Yongbiao, a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and a shareholder
of the Company, were made on a basis
mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv)  The service fee paid to Pou Chen Corporation,
a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was charged on actual cost incurred.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i)
and (ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Other transaction with a related party
During the year, the Group acquired the Vietnam
Group from Pro Kingtex, an indirectly non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Further details of
the transaction are included in note 29(a) to the
financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties

(i) Included in accrued liabilities and other
payables is an amount due to Pouyuen
Vietnam of HK$2,740,000, which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(i) Included in accounts and bills receivables are
amounts due from Dalian Garment and
Honglian Garment of HK$1,264,000, which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
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M. HAEATRG @

(a) &)

(i) HE—ZRAEEETHEAR
ZEERANRAKRREKES
EHIRBE A B E R ER S
REMBRAE (ZEBER]) Rk
LT RBRRERAA ([ R
X)) HEZPBRARDE
AxXRETRBEZEETfM -

(iv)] BARBEERRERIER
DERABAXNHNRBERE
BRE A RO B A IRER -

EXBOERBHEZAEALRS
TR ETRAUBUAEREERN

(b) HEHEALTZEMRS
AEBRENERTZEEELE
M B A BlPro Kingtex U B8 #i &g &
E-BERARSZNE—LEBIHNY
EERRMIEE29(a) ©

(c) EREAEANLTZRIESLELER
()  FEfRtPouyuen VietnamBJF1E
2,740,000 Lt A BT & 1&
REMENRIE - BEER-

REREBREKREE -

(i) FEBCEBRNRK R BEKROR
181,264,000/ 7T 5t A FE I BR
RERER ABRER REXK
BAREKEE-
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

35.

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties

(continued)

(i) Included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables is an amount due from Dalian
Garment of HK$9,837,000, which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(iv) Included in accrued liabilities and other
payables is an amount due from Dalian
Garment of HK$760,000, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The directors are the key management personnel of
the Group. Details of their remuneration are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
CE-AFZA=+—H

K. HAEATRG @

(c) EREEALTZKREMEGER®E

(i) FEURGERBIRRAIFRIEY,837,000
BT ATBARIE - RERE
MEWKRIE  BEER 28
RBEREREE-

(iv)  FE W% B 84 7% 19 FUIE 760,000
Bt ANEEEREMER

RE RHEER REREAR

(d) EZALEEZFTEEEAE -
FHMNZ 5B R M R RN s

35. R T B 948

FEEMTERBERARWKREEDT :

Financial assets EREE
2019
—B-hEF
HK$°000
FET
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHERATERNESMEE
Accounts and bills receivables FEWER R R =18 411,242
Financial assets included in prepayments, FIANFERRE -2k
deposits and other receivables EMERRENE R EE 22,866
Pledged deposits EiREER 15,204
Restricted bank balance 5 BR il SR 1T 45 B8R 585
Cash and bank balances HERIRITHER 193,834
643,731
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. Rl TE 2% @
CATEGORY (continued)
2018
—E-)N\EF
HK$'000
FET
Loans and receivables: ER & ERTIE
Accounts and bills receivables EWER R R EB 234,072
Financial assets included in prepayments, FANFEMNRE - HEkH
deposits and other receivables 1 FE WX TR <& Rt B B 8,215
Restricted bank balance PR &l 8B 17 45 Bk 2,639
Cash and bank balances R & NIRRT R 222,870
467,796

Financial liabilities — Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

EMEHE — REEREFTIRN SR

&R

2019 2018

—EB—hE —E—/)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THET

Accounts and bills payables B ERR KR EE 258,169 145,767
Financial liabilities included in accrued %l A\ F& 51 & & & H fth F& 4 5t

liabilities and other payables ENEREE 52,894 39,397

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 572,155 196,800

883,218 381,964

The directors consider the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate to their fair values as at the
end of the reporting period largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.
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EERA RESHX EREBHEAE
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36. TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

The following table provides a summary of financial
assets that have been transferred in such a way
that part of the transferred financial assets do not
qualify for derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities:

Bills endorsement under the Law of
Negotiable Instruments of the PRC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2019
—E-AFZ/F=+—H

36. EBEERIEE

(a)

Carrying amount of assets that

REEERNEERTIE

AEMEIEEINEHREME
B
TRE|ERAUFNEBREREER
TEBHERERNTIERENS
MEERBEREE:

RIBFPEHRBEZNEBEE

2019 2018
—B-h#F —E-)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET THET

continued to be recognised 7,618 —
Carrying amount of associated 1 ABNWEREE
liabilities 7,618 =

At 31 March 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of
HK$7,618,000 (2018: Nil) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the accounts payable due to such
suppliers (the "“Endorsement”). In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has retained the
substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full
carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the
associated accounts payable settled. Subsequent to
the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amount of the accounts payable settled by the
Endorsed Bills during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was HK$7,618,000 (2018:
Nil) as at 31 March 2019.
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R_FB—AhE=B=+—H *&
BEmHEETHERSEREER
7,618,000 T (ZF—/\F: #)E
EhEAERTESZETERE
BEEZER) UEBEMGZSE
HEBZEMER(EED &=
R AEBEREEREBRE
R OEEREEEBEZELNR
S R ENERIAEEZERZ
FIEEREEKRE &S ZHEEEMEE
R-NREER AEBELEEREEZF
AOEREEZEBZET  8F Y
E EEQRBEEERTFEMAE
ME=FZ2EMN FNEEBEEE
BXMZzHEREEREZEMEE
TR B—-NE=ZRB=+—HZE
i # {8 A7,618,0007c (= & — J\
FHE) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRKE(R)
31 March 2019
—F-AFZAZ+—H

36. TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

(b)

Transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of
Negotiable Instruments of the PRC

At 31 March 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in
Mainland China (the *“Derecognised Bills”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
accounts payable due to such suppliers with a
carrying amount in aggregate of HK$2,808,000
(2018: Nil). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity
of one to three months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated accounts payable. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any
gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement
has been made evenly throughout the year.
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(b)

36. EEEERIEEw

EMRILEEINESRERM
BE
RGP EFE B EZNREEE

A_FBE—NE=ZB=+—H &*&
EaEETHESSSREZESR
2,808,000 T (ZF—/\F : #)E
EETEBERFNPEKERTE
SZETEWRER((KRIEERE
Bl DEBEMNZEHRERZIE
AR - R IEBREZEBNREE XK
—ZE=EBENIE -REPHERE
o WERETPERTEL  AKILE
BREBzHEAEGEAAEHR
HEBR(FESHE]) - EFEEHERA
AEBCERERARLEERZEEZ
BREBH AR KREIER - FAL - ANE
BRI ERRIEEREREZFER
HEMNREBEMER AEER
BHESHRIBRIRAEZERRERZE
HRIEBREBZATRRSREZ
BABGEEBESENRERAEE &
ERE AEBFESHKIEER
ERZAFELEREKX -

REE AEERERKRIULEEIRER
Bz HILEEREMRENEE -
RENFRFBE  MEERDEKE
FHEZENE@NEE EREE
FERFHFLES -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, restricted bank balance, pledged
deposits, accounts and bills payables and financial
liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risk. The interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash
and bank balances are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

201

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
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37. W ERAKREE 2B ERBE

AEENTIESRMIAGREMBRITE
ARBERIRTER ZFEMTEREZE
ZENREBELEELEMFTEE - &5
EHEEBRURRARE BEMRE BE
MEMEBRREMEENEREE R
HIRITEERR  EMBER  BURRKRE
BREGEBEREMEMNREREEN
THEEFEEEMEREEREE )
REEEREEESE -

AEEETHMIBEZTERARSKRENEX
Rk - SMEREER - EBEERRREER
-EEgERLHEEESEFRER
ZBUR - R -

1 2= [ B
AEEMARZT BN ERBHEREE
HEAEEZIHANRFRBNRITEER
o

FEEEHEELERIEEEUERE
HARER - st RIRTERRBEERIRT
ERREHNANR  MASEREMR -
FRABBART HR R REE BN
EELEFTLUER -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’'s net profit
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

37. W BEKREBE 2B ERBEK

(&)
FIRBEBE (&)

HaM(AFEEEXE)HAXRZGE
7] BE S B R UK -

Increase in Decrease

interest rate in net

(basis points) profit

=g (EE) i 1 Rk 2D

HK$'000

TET

2019 —E—hE 100 4,777

2018 —F—)\F 100 1,643
Foreign currency risk 4 EE L B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States dollars
("US$") and RMB. As the foreign currency risk arising
from sales and purchases can be set off with each other
given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the
Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is
minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue
maintaining the balance of its sales and purchases in the
same currency. However, as the functional currency of
the PRC subsidiaries is RMB and the Group’s financial
statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation credit/(debit) to the exchange fluctuation
reserve as a result of RMB appreciation/(depreciation).
The majority of the Group’s operating assets are located
in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging
the significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.
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AEEARRZERKRR - B EBRAR
PHEEBBEMMUET((ERTDRARKE
ETEEEL -HNBTEITHIE B
BEEAZERRIUERRE F~5E
HBIE HIMERBRER - AEESEREER
MEREHKETEE Z FEBX - A
HRFEHRBABDUARERINESE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (due to

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERRNE(H)
31 March 2019
- AEZF=+—H

 HBERBEEZBERREE

/43 )
\’/{5/

SMNEE R\ B (4)
TRINRAEE LB AREERRK
SHRAREHRZ GBS (FMEHEME
ERRFTB)ZHREHREBEER
BEAFERE)

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities):
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange rate in net profit
EXEHAH “EFEin
("F k) ()
HK$'000
TFHET
2019 —E—hE
If HK$ strengthens against RMIB HWETEAREAE 3% (1,671)
If HK$ weakens against RMB HMETEAREERE (3%) 1,671
2018 —EB—)\F
If HK$ strengthens against R\MIB HWETEAREAE 3% (719)
If HK$ weakens against RMB HWETREARKERE (3%) 719
Liquidity risk TENE & RS

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivables) and the
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities. The
directors have reviewed the Group’s working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and determined that the
Group has no significant liquidity risk.
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FEEEAREERBHESRETAER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MBRABEEZBERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) WEEEREZ)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as RBEPR - AEBERBSLRITRAS
at the end of the reporting period, based on the HtEZSRMAaBIHBERAOT :

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On demand or within one year

BERE—FN
2019 2018
—B-AhEF —E—)\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Accounts and bills payables BT ER AKX EE 258,169 145,767
Financial liabilities included in accrued %I X\ F& &t & & & H fth F& (<
liabilities and other payables NENEHARE 52,894 39,397
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 573,278 197,066
884,341 382,230
Credit risk EERBE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEBEERITREERFNE=ZFE
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers IRZ - AEETHEUGREAARZHN
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit FMERFETEESRST - i BIKFIE
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances ERTEEFEER-

are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 March 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March 2019. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
31 March 2019
—E-AF=H=+—H

37. W ERAKREE 2B ERBE

(&)
RZEB-AF=ZA=+—HHRSHEA
B R E A4S REER A

TRENERAEENFEEBRRNEE
BRkRSEERR FTEERAHER
(BRFEEMERTERANERNLERAR
HENNERTER) RRZF-NF
ZR=tT—HNFEEERDI - AE5IH
FHERESREERREE-

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-@A
FEHEE
BB SHEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—EER B FEZEER Sk A& s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET TET
Accounts receivable* & W BR 7R % = — — 403,624 403,624
Bills receivable FE W == 1%
— Normal** — NS 7,618 — — — 7,618
Financial assets included in FIATEMRIE  Be
prepayments, deposits and B E i FE W FRIE R
other receivables EMEE
— Normal** = Aggs 22,866 — — — 22,866
Pledged deposits ERFFER
— Not yet past due — K@ ff 15,204 — — — 15,204
Restricted bank balance Z PRl R 1T & 8
— Not yet past due — K@ 585 = = = 585
Cash and bank balances & K RIT R
— Not yet past due — K@ ff 193,834 — — — 193,834
240,107 — — 403,624 643,731
@ For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the e BRAANEEMRERERRABNKAENE

simplified approach for impairment allowance is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and
there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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MEBRNE(R)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. WERBREEZHERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued €
Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018 R-ZF-)\F=A=+—HHWREA
i

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is generally no
requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is

total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
The Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38.
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

A EIMBIRRR

BERAREBRBEHRRNMBRIRN

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

BEBAT

2019 2018
—B—AEFE —E—-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBAB Z’RE 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Due from subsidiaries & I B I 2 A 2,153,928 1,727,109
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—EHBEAR 118,500 39,500
Prepayments TEHFRIE 219 249
Cash and bank balances & K IR1T 48R 1,439 970
Total current assets MBI EEEE 2,274,086 1,767,828
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEfE
Due to subsidiaries ERHE A 1,306,812 954,554
Accrued liability Bt &tE 407 24
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIBITER 118,500 39,500
Tax payable FE& T #18 1,079 1,697
Total current liabilities mEaEREE 1,426,798 995,775
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE ERE 847,288 772,053
Net assets BEFRE 890,656 815,421
EQUITY =
Issued capital ERITERA 5,320 4,997
Reserves (note) #E (M sE) 885,336 810,424
Total equity BEXRBE 890,656 815,421
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38. A RNEIMBIR AR @
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continuea)
Note: B2 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RN EZMEDT :
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
30
R ER BARGE BiEaEd st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET TET TET FET
At 1 April 2017 RIE—tFMAB—H 472,586 43,088 278,766 794,440
Profit and total comprehensive FEpaflkemka
income for the year FEE L = = 135,907 135,907
Final 2017 dividend _FE-LERARE 11 = = (29,981) (29,981)
Interim 2018 dividend ZE-)\EHHEER 11 = = (89,942) (89,942)
At 31 March 2018 and RIZB—/\F
1 April 2018 =ZA=+—HBk
- /)\F@mA—H 472,586 43,088 294,750 810,424
Profit and total comprehensive FEaEARL2EKE
income for the year HER - - 111,101 111,101
Issue of shares BATRAD 27 93,728 - - 93,728
Final 2018 dividend —E-)\FREKER 11 - - (59,962) (59,962)
Interim 2019 dividend ZFE-NEHFHEEE 11 - - (69,955) (69,955)
At 31 March 2019 RZB—HN%F
=A=+—H 566,314 43,088 275,934 885,336
The capital reserve of the Company represents the ANBEXREEEALBIRBEHRIK
excess of the then consolidated net assets of the EHBAAERNEEEETRE BEA
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the WEITZARNBBRATEZERE - RIEFH
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share EHERNEE  BEXRAREUDIRTAAE
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor. R HERBEEREZRGTEREBHRRZ K
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the NENARBEHEREEBRIREE -

capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. MBIz 22U
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised MBBRRENRZ-ZZF—AFE/NAZ+INH
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on ERANBESEHELBEERT-

26 June 2019.
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